
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE AND BE ADVISED, that if any interested person desires to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter 

considered at this meeting or hearing, such interested person will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim 

record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  The meeting/hearing may be 

continued to another date and time as may be found necessary during the aforesaid meeting.  In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA), any person requiring special accommodations at these meetings because of disability or physical impairment should contact the Interim 

City Manager at (954)753-5841 at least two (2) calendar days prior to the meeting. 

 

P&Z Board Members                                                                                                                                    City of Westlake 

Roger Manning                                                                  4001 Seminole Pratt Whitney Rd. 
Katrina Long Robinson                                                              Westlake, Florida 33470 
John Stanavitch                                                                 Phone: 561-530-5880           
Kara Crump                                                                                                                    Fax:       561-790-5466 
Phillip Everett                                                                                                                                 
 

       

 

 

Planning and Zoning Meeting 

Monday, October 8, 2018 

 

 

Meeting Location 

Westlake Council Chambers 

4005 Seminole Pratt-Whitney Road 

Westlake, FL 33470 

6:00 PM 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 1



P&Z Board Members                                                                                                                                    City of Westlake 

Roger Manning                                                                 4001 Seminole Pratt Whitney Rd. 
Katrina Long Robinson                                                              Westlake, Florida 33470 
John Stanavitch                                                                 Phone: 561-530-5880           
Kara Crump                                                                                                                   Fax:       561-790-5466 
Phillip Everett                                                                                                                                
 

       

October 5, 2018 

   

City Council 

City of Westlake 

 

Dear Mayor and Council: 

 

The Planning and Zoning meeting of the City of Westlake will be held on Monday, October 8, 2018 at 

6:00 p.m. at the Westlake Council Chambers, 4005 Seminole Pratt Whitney Road, Westlake, Florida.  

Following is the advance agenda for the meeting.   

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Approval of the Minutes of the May 21, 2018 Planning and Zoning Meeting 

4. Review of Ordinance 2019-1 – Flood Plan Management FEMA 

5. Consideration of Final Plat for Waters Edge Drive and Recommendation of Approval of Resolution 

2018-28 

6. Audience Comments 

7. Adjournment 

   

Staff will present their reports at the meeting.  I look forward to seeing you, but in the meantime if you 

have any questions, please contact me. 

 

Sincerely, 
 

Kenneth Cassel 
 

Kenneth G. Cassel 

City Manager 
 

cc:  Pam E. Booker, Esq  

 John Carter 

      Terry Lewis  

 Kelly Burke 

Agenda Page 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Third Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 3



   

Unapproved Minutes 

MINUTES OF PLANNING AND ZONING MEETING 

CITY OF WESTLAKE 

 

 A Planning and Zoning meeting of the City of Westlake was held on Monday, May 21, 

2018 at 6:00 p.m. at the Westlake Community Center, 4005 Seminole-Pratt Whitney Road, 

Westlake, Florida.   

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 

  

 Roger Manning  Mayor 

 Katrina Long Robinson Vice Mayor 

 John Stanavitch City Council Seat 1 

 Kara Crump City Council Seat 2 

 Phillip Everett City Council Seat 3 

       

 Also present were: 

  

 Pam E. Booker, Esq. City Attorney 

 Lynn LoBrutto Inframark, LLC 

 Nilsa Zacarias NZ Consultants 

 John Carter  Minto PBLH, LLC 

       

 The following is a summary of the minutes and actions taken during the May 21, 2018 

City of Westlake Planning and Zoning Meeting.  

   

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order/Roll Call 

 Mayor Manning called the meeting to order and Mr. Cassel called the roll. 

  

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Pledge of Allegiance 

 The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the March 26, 

2018 Planning and Zoning Meeting 

  

On MOTION by Councilwoman Crump seconded by Councilman 

Stanavitch with all in favor the minutes of the March 26, 2018 

Planning and Zoning meeting were approved. 

  

 

 

 

Agenda Page 4



May 21, 2018  City of Westlake 

  Planning and Zoning 

Unapproved Minutes 2 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Amended Site Plan for 

POD PC-1 Amenity Parcel and 

Recommendation of Approval of 

Resolution 2018-13 
 Ms. Zacarias reviewed and provided a presentation on the amended site plan for POD PC-

1 Amenity Parcel. 

 Mr. Carter addressed the Counsel and stated the overall vision of the originally approved 

complex has not been fundamentally changed.  

 Mayor Manning asked about security for the amenity parcel. 

 Mr. Carter responded the amenities would only be open to residents who live in 

Westlake.  Access control and security have been layered to access the amenities.   

 Ms. LoBrutto read Resolution 2018-13 by title only. 

   

On MOTION by Councilman Stanavitch seconded by Vice Mayor 

Long Robinson with all in favor Resolution 2018-13 was 

recommended for approval by the City Council. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 
 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment  

 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:20 p.m. 

 

  

 

     

Kenneth Cassel   Roger Manning   

City Manager    Mayor 

Agenda Page 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fourth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 6



October 8, 2018 First Reading 

November 12, 2018 Second Reading 

ORDINANCE 2019-1 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF WESTLAKE, FLORIDA, 

CREATING AN ARTICLE ENTITLED “FLOOD PREVENTION AND CONTROL”; TO ADOPT 

FLOOD HAZARD MAPS, TO DESIGNATE A FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR, TO ADOPT 

PROCEDURES AND CRITERIA FOR DEVELOPMENT IN FLOOD HAZARD AREAS, AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES; PROVIDING FOR APPLICABILITY AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the text addition at a public hearing held on 

October 8, 2018, and the Board made a recommendation to send the proposed changes to the City Council 

with a recommendation of approval; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Florida Statute 163.3174(4)(c), the Planning and Zoning Board, sitting 

as the Local Planning Agency, has determined that the change is consistent with and furthers the goals, 

objectives and policies of the Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Westlake adopts the findings in the Planning and 

Zoning Staff Report; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Westlake finds the ordinance is consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 166 – Municipalities, Florida 

Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed to promote the 

public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency has identified special flood hazard 

areas within the boundaries of the City of Westlake and such areas may be subject to periodic inundation 

which may result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and 

governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, and impairment 

of the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety and general welfare; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Westlake is applying for participation in the National Flood Insurance 

Program and the City Council for the City of Westlake desires to meet the requirements of Title 44 Code 

of Federal Regulations, Sections 59 and 60, necessary for such participation; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 553, Florida Statutes, was adopted by the Florida Legislature to provide a 

mechanism for the uniform adoption, updating, amendment, interpretation and enforcement of a state 

building code, called the Florida Building Code; and 

1 

Agenda Page 7



WHEREAS, the City of Westlake City Council has determined that it is in the public interest to 

adopt the proposed floodplain management regulations that are coordinated with the Florida Building 

Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council for the City of Westlake in that 

the following floodplain management regulations are hereby adopted. 

Section 1: Incorporation: That the recitations set forth above are incorporated herein. 

Section 2: ARTICLE 10 FLOOD PREVENTION AND CONTROL 

Section 10.1.1 General Provisions: 

(A) Title: These regulations shall be known as “Floodplain Management Regulations”, article of 

the Land Development Regulations (LDR) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Westlake, Florida, 

shall read as follows: 

(B) Scope: The provisions of the Floodplain Management Regulations shall apply to all development 

that is wholly within or partially within any flood hazard area, including but not limited to the subdivision 

of land; filling, grading, and other site improvements and utility installations; construction, alteration, 

remodeling, enlargement, improvement, replacement, repair, relocation or demolition of buildings, 

structures, and facilities that are exempt from the Florida Building Code; placement, installation, or 

replacement of manufactured homes and manufactured buildings; installation or replacement of tanks; 

placement of recreational vehicles; installation of swimming pools; and any other development. Where 

specified, these regulations apply outside of mapped flood hazard areas. 

(C) Intent: The purposes of the Floodplain Management Regulations and the flood load and flood 

resistant construction requirements of the Florida Building Code are to establish minimum requirements 

to safeguard the public health, safety, and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses due 

to flooding through regulation of development in flood hazard areas to: 

(1) Minimize unnecessary disruption of commerce, access and public service during times of 

flooding; 

(2) Require the use of appropriate construction practices in order to prevent or minimize future 

flood damage; 

(3) Manage filling, grading, dredging, mining, paving, excavation, drilling operations, storage of 

equipment or materials, and other development which may increase flood damage or erosion 

potential; 

(4) Minimize damage to public and private facilities and utilities; 

(5) Help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of flood hazard 

areas; 

(6) Minimize the need for future expenditure of public funds for flood control projects and response 

2 

Agenda Page 8



to and recovery from flood events; and 

(7) Meet the requirements of the National Flood Insurance Program for community participation as 

set forth in the Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations, Section 59.22. 

(D) Coordination with the Florida Building Code: The Floodplain Management Regulations are 

intended to be administered and enforced in conjunction with the Florida Building Code. Where cited, 

ASCE 24 refers to the edition of the standard that is referenced by the Florida Building Code. 

(E) Warning: The degree of flood protection required by the Floodplain Management Regulations 

and the Florida Building Code, as amended by this community, is considered the minimum reasonable for 

regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger floods can and will 

occur. Flood heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes. The Floodplain Management 

Regulations do not imply that land outside of mapped special flood hazard areas, or that uses permitted 

within such flood hazard areas, will be free from flooding or flood damage. The flood hazard areas and 

base flood elevations contained in the Flood Insurance Study and shown on Flood Insurance Rate Maps 

and the requirements of Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations, Sections 59 and 60 may be revised by the 

Federal Emergency Management Agency, requiring this community to revise these regulations to remain 

eligible for participation in the National Flood Insurance Program. No guaranty of vested use, existing use, 

or future use is implied or expressed by compliance with the Floodplain Management Regulations. 

(F) Disclaimer of Liability: The Floodplain Management Regulations shall not create liability on 

the part of the City Council of the City of Westlake or by any officer or employee thereof for any flood 

damage that results from reliance on the Floodplain Management Regulations or any administrative 

decision lawfully made thereunder. 

Section 10.1.2 Applicability: 

(A) General: Where there is a conflict between a general requirement and a specific requirement, the 

specific requirement shall be applicable. 

(B) Areas to which the Floodplain Management Regulations Apply: The Floodplain Management 

Regulations shall apply to all flood hazard areas within the City of Westlake, as established in LDR 

Section 10.1.2(C). 

(C) Basis for Establishing Flood Hazard Areas: The Flood Insurance Study for Palm Beach 

County, Florida and Incorporated Areas dated October 5, 2017, and all subsequent amendments and 

revisions, and the accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), and all subsequent amendments 

and revisions to such maps, are adopted by reference as a part of the Floodplain Management 

Regulations and shall serve as the minimum basis for establishing flood hazard areas. Studies and maps 

that establish flood hazard areas are on file at the City of Westlake Building Division, 4001 Seminole 

Pratt Whitney Road, Westlake Florida, 33470. 

(D) Submission of Additional Data to Establish Flood Hazard Areas: To establish flood hazard 

areas and base flood elevations, pursuant to LDR Section 10.1.5 the Floodplain Administrator may 

require submission of additional data. Where field surveyed topography prepared by a Florida licensed 

3 

Agenda Page 9



professional surveyor or digital topography accepted by the community indicates that ground elevations: 

(1) Are below the closest applicable base flood elevation, even in areas not delineated as a special 

flood hazard area on a FIRM, the area shall be considered as flood hazard area and subject to the 

requirements of the Floodplain Management Regulations and, as applicable, the requirements of 

the Florida Building Code. 

(2) Are above the closest applicable base flood elevation, the area shall be regulated as special flood 

hazard area unless the applicant obtains a Letter of Map Change that removes the area from the 

special flood hazard area. 

(E) Other Laws: The provisions of the Floodplain Management Regulations shall not be deemed to 

nullify any provisions of local, state or federal law. 

(F) Abrogation and Greater Restrictions: The Floodplain Management Regulations supersede any 

LDR Section in effect for management of development in flood hazard areas. However, it is not intended 

to repeal or abrogate any existing ordinances including but not limited to land development regulations, 

zoning ordinances, stormwater management regulations, or the Florida Building Code. In the event of a 

conflict between the Floodplain Management Regulations and any other ordinance, the more restrictive 

shall govern. The Floodplain Management Regulations shall not impair any deed restriction, covenant or 

easement, but any land that is subject to such interests shall also be governed by the Floodplain 

Management Regulations. 

(G) Interpretation: In the interpretation and application of the Floodplain Management Regulations, 

all provisions shall be: 

(1) Considered as minimum requirements 

(2) Liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and 

(3) Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under state statutes. 

Section 10.1.3 Duties and Powers of the Floodplain Administrator:  

(A) Designation: The Building Official is designated as the Floodplain Administrator. The 

Floodplain Administrator may delegate performance of certain duties to other employees. 

(B) General: The Floodplain Administrator is authorized and directed to administer and enforce the 

provisions of the Floodplain Management Regulations. The Floodplain Administrator shall have the 

authority to render interpretations of the Floodplain Management Regulations consistent with the intent 

and purpose of the Floodplain Management Regulations and may establish policies and procedures in 

order to clarify the application of its provisions. Such interpretations, policies, and procedures shall not 

have the effect of waiving requirements specifically provided in the Floodplain Management Regulations 

without the granting of a variance pursuant to LDR Section 10.1.7. 

(C) Applications and Permits: The Floodplain Administrator, in coordination with other 

pertinent offices of the community, shall: 

(1) Review applications and plans to determine whether proposed new development will be located in 

flood hazard areas; 

(2) Review applications for modification of any existing development in flood hazard areas for 

4 

Agenda Page 10



compliance with the requirements of the Floodplain Management Regulations; 

(3) Interpret flood hazard area boundaries where such interpretation is necessary to determine the 

exact location of boundaries; a person contesting the determination shall have the opportunity 

to appeal the interpretation; 

(4) Provide available flood elevation and flood hazard information; 

(5) Determine whether additional flood hazard data shall be obtained from other sources or shall be 

developed by an applicant; 

(6) Review applications to determine whether proposed development will be reasonably safe 

from flooding; 

(7) Issue floodplain development permits or approvals for development other than buildings and 

structures that are subject to the Florida Building Code, including buildings, structures and 

facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code, when compliance with the Floodplain 

Management Regulations is demonstrated, or disapprove the same in the event of 

noncompliance; and 

(8) Coordinate with and provide comments to the Building Official to assure that applications, plan 

reviews, and inspections for buildings and structures in flood hazard areas comply with the 

applicable provisions of the Floodplain Management Regulations. 

(D) Substantial Improvement and Substantial Damage Determinations: For applications for building 

permits to improve buildings and structures, including alterations, movement, enlargement, replacement, 

repair, change of occupancy, additions, rehabilitations, renovations, substantial improvements, repairs of 

substantial damage, and any other improvement of or work on such buildings and structures, the 

Floodplain Administrator, in coordination with the Building Official, shall: 

(1) Estimate the market value, or require the applicant to obtain an appraisal of the market value 

prepared by a qualified independent appraiser, of the building or structure before the start of 

construction of the proposed work; in the case of repair, the market value of the building or 

structure shall be the market value before the damage occurred and before any repairs are made; 

(2) Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair a damaged building to its pre-

damaged condition, or the combined costs of improvements and repairs, if applicable, to the 

market value of the building or structure; 

(3) Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial improvement or 

repair of substantial damage; and 

(4) Notify the applicant if it is determined that the work constitutes substantial improvement or repair 

of substantial damage and that compliance with the flood resistant construction requirements of the 

Florida Building Code and the Floodplain Management Regulations is required. 

(E) Modifications of the Strict Application of the Requirements of the Florida Building Code: 

The Floodplain Administrator shall review requests submitted to the Building Official that seek approval 

to modify the strict application of the flood load and flood resistant construction requirements of the 

Florida Building Code to determine whether such requests require the granting of a variance pursuant to 

5 

Agenda Page 11



LDR Section 10.1.7. 

(F) Notices and Orders: The Floodplain Administrator shall coordinate with appropriate local 

agencies for the issuance of all necessary notices or orders to ensure compliance with the Floodplain 

Management Regulations. 

(G) Inspections: The Floodplain Administrator shall make the required inspections as specified in 

LDR Section 10.1.6 for development that is not subject to the Florida Building Code, including buildings, 

structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code. The Floodplain Administrator shall 

inspect flood hazard areas to determine if development is undertaken without issuance of a permit. 

(H) Other Duties of the Floodplain Administrator: The Floodplain Administrator shall have other 

duties, including but not limited to: 

(1) Establish, in coordination with the Building Official, procedures for administering and 

documenting determinations of substantial improvement and substantial damage made pursuant 

to LDR Section 10,1.3(4). 

(2) Require applicants who submit hydrologic and hydraulic engineering analyses to support permit 

applications to submit to FEMA the data and information necessary to maintain the Flood 

Insurance Rate Maps if the analyses propose to change base flood elevations or flood hazard area 

boundaries; such submissions shall be made within 6 months of such data becoming available; 

(3) Review required design certifications and documentation of elevations specified by the 

Floodplain Management Regulations and the Florida Building Code to determine that such 

certifications and documentations are complete; and 

(4) Notify the Federal Emergency Management Agency when the corporate boundaries of the City 

of Westlake are modified. 

(I) Floodplain Management Records: Regardless of any limitation on the period required for 

retention of public records, the Floodplain Administrator shall maintain and permanently keep and make 

available for public inspection all records that are necessary for the administration of the Floodplain 

Management Regulations and the flood resistant construction requirements of the Florida Building Code, 

including Flood Insurance Rate Maps; Letters of Map Change; records of issuance of permits and denial 

of permits; determinations of whether proposed work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of 

substantial damage; required design certifications and documentation of elevations specified by the 

Florida Building Code and the Floodplain Management Regulations; documentation related to appeals 

and variances, including justification for issuance or denial; and records of enforcement actions taken 

pursuant to the Floodplain Management Regulations and the flood resistant construction requirements of 

the Florida Building Code. These records shall be available for public inspection at the City of Westlake 

Building Department, 4001 Seminole Pratt Whitney Road, Westlake, Florida 33470. 

Section 10.1.4 Permits. 

(A) Permits Required: Any owner or owner’s authorized agent (hereinafter “applicant”) who intends 

to undertake any development activity within the scope of the Floodplain Management Regulations, 

including buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code, which 

6 

Agenda Page 12



is wholly within or partially within any flood hazard area shall first make application to the Floodplain 

Administrator, and shall obtain the required permit(s) and approval(s). No such permit or approval shall 

be issued until compliance with the requirements of the Floodplain Management Regulations and all other 

applicable codes and regulations has been satisfied. 

(B) Floodplain Development Permits or Approvals: Floodplain development permits or approvals 

shall be issued pursuant to the Floodplain Management Regulations for any development activities not 

subject to the requirements of the Florida Building Code, including buildings, structures and facilities 

exempt from the Florida Building Code. Depending on the nature and extent of proposed development 

that includes a building or structure, the Floodplain Administrator may determine that a floodplain 

development permit or approval is required in addition to a building permit. 

(C) Buildings, Structures and Facilities Exempt from the Florida Building Code: Pursuant to the 

requirements of federal regulation for participation in the National Flood Insurance Program (44 C.F.R. 

Sections 59 and 60), floodplain development permits or approvals shall be required for the following 

buildings, structures and facilities that are exempt from the Florida Building Code and any further 

exemptions provided by law, which are subject to the requirements of the Floodplain Management 

Regulations: 

(1) Railroads and ancillary facilities associated with the railroad. 

(2) Nonresidential farm buildings on farms, as provided in section 604.50, F.S. 

(3) Temporary buildings or sheds used exclusively for construction purposes. 

(4) Mobile or modular structures used as temporary offices. 

(5) Those structures or facilities of electric utilities, as defined in section 366.02, F.S., which are 

directly involved in the generation, transmission, or distribution of electricity. 

(6) Chickees constructed by the Miccosukee Tribe of Indians of Florida or the Seminole Tribe of 

Florida. As used in this paragraph, the term “chickee” means an open-sided wooden hut that has 

a thatched roof of palm or palmetto or other traditional materials, and that does not incorporate 

any electrical, plumbing, or other non-wood features. 

(7) Family mausoleums not exceeding 250 square feet in area which are prefabricated and assembled 

on site or preassembled and delivered on site and have walls, roofs, and a floor constructed of 

granite, marble, or reinforced concrete. 

(8) Temporary housing provided by the Department of Corrections to any prisoner in the 

state correctional system. 

(9) Structures identified in section 553.73(10) (k), F.S., are not exempt from the Florida 

Building Code if such structures are located in flood hazard areas established on Flood 

Insurance Rate Maps. 

(D) Application for a Permit or Approval:  To obtain a floodplain development permit or 

approval the applicant shall first file an application in writing on a form furnished by the community. The 

information provided shall: 

(1) Identify and describe the development to be covered by the permit or approval. 

7 

Agenda Page 13



(2) Describe the land on which the proposed development is to be conducted by legal description,  

street address or similar description that will readily identify and definitively locate the site. 

(3) Indicate the use and occupancy for which the proposed development is intended. 

(4) Be accompanied by a site plan or construction documents as specified in LDR Section 10.1.5. 

(5) State the valuation of the proposed work. 

(6) Be signed by the applicant or the applicant's authorized agent. 

(7) Give such other data and information as required by the Floodplain Administrator. 

(E) Validity of Permit or Approval: The issuance of a floodplain development permit or approval 

pursuant to the Floodplain Management Regulations shall not be construed to be a permit for, or approval 

of, any violation of the Floodplain Management Regulations, the Florida Building Codes, or any other 

ordinance of this community. The issuance of permits based on submitted applications, construction 

documents, and information shall not prevent the Floodplain Administrator from requiring the correction 

of errors and omissions. 

(F) Expiration: A floodplain development permit or approval shall become invalid unless the work 

authorized by such permit is commenced within 180 days after its issuance, or if the work authorized is 

suspended or abandoned for a period of 180 days after the work commences. Extensions for periods of 

not more than 180 days each shall be requested in writing and justifiable cause shall be demonstrated. 

(G) Suspension or Revocation: The Floodplain Administrator is authorized to suspend or revoke a 

floodplain development permit or approval if the permit was issued in error, on the basis of incorrect, 

inaccurate or incomplete information, or in violation of the Floodplain Management Regulations or any 

other ordinance, regulation or requirement of this community. 

(H) Other Permits Required: Floodplain development permits and building permits shall include a 

condition that all other applicable state or federal permits be obtained before commencement of the 

permitted development, including but not limited to the following: 

(1) The South Florida Water Management District; section 373.036, F.S. 

(2) Florida Department of Health for onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems; section 

381.0065, F.S. and Chapter 64E-6, F.A.C. 

(3) Florida Department of Environmental Protection for activities subject to the Joint Coastal Permit; 

section 161.055, F.S. 

(4) Florida Department of Environmental Protection for activities that affect wetlands and alter 

surface water flows, in conjunction with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; Section 404 of the 

Clean Water Act. 

(5) Federal permits and approvals. 

Section 10.1.5 Site Plans and Construction Documents: 

(A) Information for Development in Flood Hazard Areas: The site plan or construction documents for 

any development subject to the requirements of the Floodplain Management Regulations shall be drawn 

to scale and shall include, as applicable to the proposed development: 

(1) Delineation of flood hazard areas boundaries and flood zone(s), base flood elevation(s), and 

8 

Agenda Page 14



ground elevations if necessary for review of the proposed development. 

(2) Where base flood elevations are not included on the FIRM or in the Flood Insurance Study, they 

shall be established in accordance with LDR Section 10.1.5(B)(2) or (3). 

(3) Where the parcel on which the proposed development will take place will have more than 50 lots 

or is larger than 5 acres and the base flood elevations are not included on the FIRM or in the 

Flood Insurance Study, such elevations shall be established in LDR Section 10.1.5(B)(1). 

(4) Location of the proposed activity and proposed structures, and locations of existing buildings and 

structures. 

(5) Location, extent, amount, and proposed final grades of any filling, grading, or excavation. 

(6) Where the placement of fill is proposed, the amount, type, and source of fill material; compaction 

specifications; a description of the intended purpose of the fill areas; and evidence that the 

proposed fill areas are the minimum necessary to achieve the intended purpose. 

The Floodplain Administrator is authorized to waive the submission of site plans, construction documents, 

and other data that are required by the Floodplain Management Regulations but that are not required to be 

prepared by a registered design professional if it is found that the nature of the proposed development is 

such that the review of such submissions is not necessary to ascertain compliance with the Floodplain 

Management Regulations. 

(B) Information in Flood Hazard Areas Without Base Flood Elevations (Approximate Zone A):  

Where flood hazard areas are delineated on the FIRM and base flood elevation data have not been 

provided, the Floodplain Administrator shall: 

(1) Require the applicant to include base flood elevation data prepared in accordance with currently 

accepted engineering practices. 

(2) Obtain, review, and provide to applicants base flood elevation data available from a federal or 

state agency or other source or require the applicant to obtain and use base flood elevation data 

available from a federal or state agency or other source. 

(3) Where base flood elevation data are not available from another source, where the available data 

are deemed by the Floodplain Administrator to not reasonably reflect flooding conditions, or 

where the available data are known to be scientifically or technically incorrect or otherwise 

inadequate: 

a. Require the applicant to include base flood elevation data prepared in accordance with 

currently accepted engineering practices; or 

b. Specify that the base flood elevation is two (2) feet above the highest adjacent grade at 

the location of the development, provided there is no evidence indicating flood depths 

have been or may be greater than two (2) feet. 

(4) Where the base flood elevation data are to be used to support a Letter of Map Change from 

FEMA, advise the applicant that the analyses shall be prepared by a Florida licensed engineer in 

a format required by FEMA, and that it shall be the responsibility of the applicant to satisfy the 

submittal requirements and pay the processing fees. 

9 

Agenda Page 15



(C) Submission of Additional Data: When additional hydrologic, hydraulic or other engineering 

data, studies, and additional analyses are submitted to support an application, the applicant has the right 

to seek a Letter of Map Change from FEMA to change the base flood elevations, change floodway 

boundaries, or change boundaries of flood hazard areas shown on FIRMs, and to submit such data to 

FEMA for such purposes. The analyses shall be prepared by a Florida licensed engineer in a format 

required by FEMA. Submittal requirements and processing fees shall be the responsibility of the 

applicant. 

Section 10.1.6  Inspections.  

(A) General: Development for which a floodplain development permit or approval is required 

shall be subject to inspection. 

(B) Development Other Than Buildings and Structures: The Floodplain Administrator shall 

inspect all development to determine compliance with the requirements of the Floodplain 

Management Regulations and the conditions of issued floodplain development permits or approvals. 

(C) Buildings, Structures and Facilities Exempt from the Florida Building Code: The Floodplain 

Administrator shall inspect buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code to 

determine compliance with the requirements of the Floodplain Management Regulations and the 

conditions of issued floodplain development permits or approvals. 

(D) Buildings, Structures and Facilities Exempt from the Florida Building Code, Lowest Floor  

Inspection: Upon placement of the lowest floor, including basement, and prior to further vertical 

construction, the owner of a building, structure or facility exempt from the Florida Building Code, or the 

owner’s authorized agent, shall submit to the Floodplain Administrator: 

(1) If a design flood elevation was used to determine the required elevation of the lowest floor, 

the certification of elevation of the lowest floor prepared and sealed by a Florida licensed 

professional surveyor; or 

(2) If the elevation used to determine the required elevation of the lowest floor was determined in 

accordance with LDR Section 10.1.5(B)(3)(b) the documentation of height of the lowest floor 

above highest adjacent grade, prepared by the owner or the owner’s authorized agent. 

(E) Buildings, Structures and Facilities Exempt from the Florida Building Code, Final  

Inspection: As part of the final inspection, the owner or owner’s authorized agent shall submit to the 

Floodplain Administrator a final certification of elevation of the lowest floor or final documentation 

of the height of the lowest floor above the highest adjacent grade; such certifications and 

documentations shall be prepared as specified in LDR Section 10.1.6(D). 

(F) Manufactured Home: The Floodplain Administrator shall inspect manufactured homes that are 

installed or replaced in flood hazard areas to determine compliance with the requirements of the 

Floodplain Management Regulations and the conditions of the issued permit. Upon placement of a 

manufactured home, certification of the elevation of the lowest floor shall be submitted to the Floodplain 

Administrator. 

10 

Agenda Page 16



Section 10.1.7 Variances and Appeals: 

(A) General: The City Council or its designee shall hear and decide on requests for appeals and 

requests for variances from the strict application of the Floodplain Management Regulations. Pursuant to 

section 553.73(5), F.S., the Board of Adjustment shall hear and decide on requests for appeals and 

requests for variances from the strict application of the flood resistant construction requirements of the 

Florida Building Code. 

(B) Appeals: The City Council or its designee shall hear and decide appeals when it is alleged there 

is an error in any requirement, decision, or determination made by the Floodplain Administrator in the 

administration and enforcement of the Floodplain Management Regulations. Any person aggrieved by 

the decision may appeal such decision to the Circuit Court, as provided by Florida Statutes. 

(C) Limitations on Authority to Grant Variances: The City Council or its designee shall base its 

decisions on variances on technical justifications submitted by applicants, the considerations for issuance 

in LDR Section 10.1.7(G) and the conditions of issuance set forth in LDR Section 10.1.7(H), and the 

comments and recommendations of the Floodplain Administrator and the Building Official. The Board of 

Adjustment has the right to attach such conditions as it deems necessary to further the purposes and 

objectives of the Floodplain Management Regulations. 

(D) Restrictions in Floodways: A variance shall not be issued for any proposed development in a 

floodway if any increase in base flood elevations would result, as evidenced by the applicable analyses 

and certifications required in LDR Section 10.1.5(C). 

(E) Historic Buildings: A variance is authorized to be issued for the repair, improvement, or 

rehabilitation of a historic building that is determined eligible for the exception to the flood resistant 

construction requirements of the Florida Building Code, Existing Building, Chapter 12 Historic 

Buildings, upon a determination that the proposed repair, improvement, or rehabilitation will not preclude 

the building’s continued designation as a historic building and the variance is the minimum necessary to 

preserve the historic character and design of the building. If the proposed work precludes the building’s 

continued designation as a historic building, a variance shall not be granted and the building and any repair, 

improvement, and rehabilitation shall be subject to the requirements of the Florida Building Code. 

(F) Functionally Dependent Uses: A variance is authorized to be issued for the construction or 

substantial improvement necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent use, as defined in the 

Floodplain Management Regulations, provided the variance meets the requirements of LDR Section 

10.1.7(D), is the minimum necessary considering the flood hazard, and all due consideration has been 

given to use of methods and materials that minimize flood damage during occurrence of the base flood. 

(G) Considerations for Issuance of Variances:  In reviewing requests for variances, the Board of 

Adjustment shall consider all technical evaluations, all relevant factors, all other applicable provisions of 

the Florida Building Code, the Floodplain Management Regulations, and the following: 

(1) The danger that materials and debris may be swept onto other lands resulting in further injury 

or damage; 

(2) The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage; 

11 

Agenda Page 17



(3) The susceptibility of the proposed development, including contents, to flood damage and the 

effect of such damage on current and future owners; 

(4) The importance of the services provided by the proposed development to the community; 

(5) The availability of alternate locations for the proposed development that are subject to lower risk 

of flooding or erosion; 

(6) The compatibility of the proposed development with existing and anticipated development; 

(7) The relationship of the proposed development to the comprehensive plan and floodplain 

management program for the area; 

(8) The safety of access to the property in times of flooding for ordinary and emergency vehicles; 

(9) The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and debris and sediment transport of the 

floodwaters and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; and 

(10) The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions 

including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical 

and water systems, streets and bridges. 

(H) Conditions for Issuance of Variances: Variances shall be issued only upon: 

(1) Submission by the applicant, of a showing of good and sufficient cause that the unique 

characteristics of the size, configuration, or topography of the site limit compliance with any 

provision of the Floodplain Management Regulations or the required elevation standards; 

(2) Determination by the Board of Adjustment that: 

a. Failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship due to the physical 

characteristics of the land that render the lot undevelopable; increased costs to satisfy 

the requirements or inconvenience do not constitute hardship; 

b. The granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats 

to public safety, extraordinary public expense, nor create nuisances, cause fraud on or 

victimization of the public or conflict with existing local laws and ordinances; and 

c. The variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief; 

(3) Receipt of a signed statement by the applicant that the variance, if granted, shall be recorded in 

the Office of the Clerk of the Court in such a manner that it appears in the chain of title of the 

affected parcel of land; and 

(4) If the request is for a variance to allow construction of the lowest floor of a new building, or 

substantial improvement of a building below the required elevation, a copy in the record of a 

written notice from the Floodplain Administrator to the applicant for the variance, specifying the 

difference between the base flood elevation and the proposed elevation of the lowest floor, stating 

that the cost of federal flood insurance will be commensurate with the increased risk resulting from 

the reduced floor elevation (up to amounts as high as $25 for $100 of insurance coverage), and 

stating that construction below the base flood elevation increases risks to life and property. 

Section 10.1.8 Violations: 

(A) Violations: Any development that is not within the scope of the Florida Building Code but that 

12 

Agenda Page 18



is regulated by the Floodplain Management Regulations that is performed without an issued permit, that is 

in conflict with an issued permit, or that does not fully comply with the Floodplain Management 

Regulations, shall be deemed a violation of the Floodplain Management Regulations. A building or 

structure without the documentation of elevation of the lowest floor, other required design certifications, 

or other evidence of compliance required by the Floodplain Management Regulations or the Florida 

Building Code is presumed to be a violation until such time as that documentation is provided. 

(B) Authority: For development that is not within the scope of the Florida Building Code but that is 

regulated by the Floodplain Management Regulations and that is determined to be a violation, the 

Floodplain Administrator is authorized to serve notices of violation or stop work orders to owners of the 

property involved, to the owner’s agent, or to the person or persons performing the work. 

(C) Unlawful Continuance: Any person who shall continue any work after having been served with 

a notice of violation or a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to 

remove or remedy a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to penalties as prescribed by law. 

ARTICLE 10.2 DEFINITIONS 

Section 10.2.1 General. 

(A) Scope: Unless otherwise expressly stated, the following words and terms shall, for the purposes of 

the Floodplain Management Regulations, have the meanings shown in this section. 

(B) Terms Defined in the Florida Building Code: Where terms are not defined in the Floodplain 

Management Regulations and are defined in the Florida Building Code, such terms shall have the 

meanings ascribed to them in that code. 

(C) Terms Not Defined: Where terms are not defined in the Floodplain Management Regulations or 

the Florida Building Code, such terms shall have ordinarily accepted meanings such as the context 

implies. 

Section 10.2.2 Definitions: 

Appeal a request for a review of the Floodplain Administrator’s interpretation of any provision of 

the Floodplain Management Regulations. 

ASCE 24 is a standard titled Flood Resistant Design and Construction that is referenced by the 

Florida Building Code. ASCE 24 is developed and published by the American Society of Civil 

Engineers, Reston, VA. 

Base flood is a flood having a 1-percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. [Also 

defined in FBC, B, Section 202.] The base flood is commonly referred to as the "100-year flood" or the 

“1-percent-annual chance flood”. 

Base flood elevation the elevation of the base flood, including wave height, relative to the National 

Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD), North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) or other datum specified 

on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 202.] 

Basement is the portion of a building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all sides. [Also 

defined in FBC, B, Section 202.] 

Crown of road is the elevation of the highest surface of the street pavement within the right-of-way 

13 

Agenda Page 19



abutting the property or the elevation approved by the Floodplain Administrator. 

Design flood is the flood associated with the greater of the following two areas: [Also defined in FBC, B, 

Section 202.] 

(1) Area with a floodplain subject to a 1-percent or greater chance of flooding in any year; or 

(2) Area designated as a flood hazard area on the community’s flood hazard map, or otherwise 

legally designated. 

Design flood elevation is the elevation of the “design flood,” including wave height, relative to the datum 

specified on the community’s legally designated flood hazard map. In areas designated as Zone AO, the 

design flood elevation shall be the elevation of the highest existing grade of the building’s perimeter plus 

the depth number (in feet) specified on the flood hazard map. In areas designated as Zone AO where the 

depth number is not specified on the map, the depth number shall be taken as being equal to 2 feet. [Also 

defined in FBC, B, Section 202.] 

Development is any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including but not limited 

to, buildings or other structures, tanks, temporary structures, temporary or permanent storage of 

equipment or materials, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavations, drilling operations or 

any other land disturbing activities. 

Existing Building and Existing Structure is any buildings and structures for which the “start of 

construction” commenced before January 31, 1979. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 202.] 

Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision is a manufactured home park or subdivision for 

which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be 

affixed (including, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final 

site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before January 31, 1979. 

Expansion to an Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision is the preparation of additional 

sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be 

affixed (including the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or 

the pouring of concrete pads). 

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) is the federal agency that, in addition to carrying 

out other functions, administers the National Flood Insurance Program. 

Flood or flooding is a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally 

dry land from: [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 202.] 

(1) The overflow of inland or tidal waters. 

(2) The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source. 

Flood Damage-Resistant Materials is any construction material capable of withstanding direct and 

prolonged contact with floodwaters without sustaining any damage that requires more than cosmetic 

repair. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 202.] 

Flood hazard area. The greater of the following two areas: [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 202.] 

(1) The area within a floodplain subject to a 1-percent or greater chance of flooding in any year. 

(2) The area designated as a flood hazard area on the community’s flood hazard map, or otherwise 

14 

Agenda Page 20



legally designated. 

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) is the official map of the community on which the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency has delineated both special flood hazard areas and the risk 

premium zones applicable to the community. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 202.] 

Flood Insurance Study (FIS) is the official report provided by the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency that contains the Flood Insurance Rate Map, the Flood Boundary and Floodway Map (if 

applicable), the water surface elevations of the base flood, and supporting technical data. [Also defined in 

FBC, B, Section 202.] 

Floodplain Administrator is the office or position designated and charged with the administration and 

enforcement of the Floodplain Management Regulations (may be referred to as the Floodplain Manager). 

Floodplain development permit or approval. An official document or certificate issued by the 

community, or other evidence of approval or concurrence, which authorizes performance of specific 

development activities that are located in flood hazard areas and that are determined to be compliant with 

the Floodplain Management Regulations. 

Florida Building Code is the family of codes adopted by the Florida Building Commission, including: 

Florida Building Code, Building; Florida Building Code, Residential; Florida Building Code, Existing 

Building; Florida Building Code, Mechanical; Florida Building Code, Plumbing; Florida Building 

Code, Fuel Gas. 

Functionally Dependent Use is a use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is located or 

carried out in close proximity to water, including only docking facilities, port facilities that are necessary 

for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and ship repair facilities; the term 

does not include long-term storage or related manufacturing facilities. 

Highest Adjacent Grade is the highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to construction next 

to the proposed walls or foundation of a structure. 

Historic Structure is any structure that is determined eligible for the exception to the flood hazard area 

requirements of the Florida Building Code, Existing Building, Chapter 12 Historic Buildings. 

Letter of Map Change (LOMC) is an official determination issued by FEMA that amends or revises 

an effective Flood Insurance Rate Map or Flood Insurance Study. Letters of Map Change include: 

Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA) is an amendment based on technical data showing that a 

property was incorrectly included in a designated special flood hazard area. A LOMA amends 

the current effective Flood Insurance Rate Map and establishes that a specific property, portion 

of a property, or structure is not located in a special flood hazard area. 

Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) is a revision based on technical data that may show changes 

to flood zones, flood elevations, special flood hazard area boundaries and floodway 

delineations, and other planimetric features. 

Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F) is a determination that a structure or parcel of 

land has been elevated by fill above the base flood elevation and is, therefore, no longer located 

within the special flood hazard area. In order to qualify for this determination, the fill must have 

15 

Agenda Page 21



been permitted and placed in accordance with the community’s floodplain management 

regulations. 

Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) is a formal review and comment as to whether a 

proposed flood protection project or other project complies with the minimum NFIP 

requirements for such projects with respect to delineation of special flood hazard areas. A 

CLOMR does not revise the effective Flood Insurance Rate Map or Flood Insurance Study; upon 

submission and approval of certified as-built documentation, a Letter of Map Revision may be 

issued by FEMA to revise the effective FIRM. 

Light-duty truck. As defined in 40 C.F.R. 86.082-2, any motor vehicle rated at 8,500 pounds Gross 

Vehicular Weight Rating or less which has a vehicular curb weight of 6,000 pounds or less and which has 

a basic vehicle frontal area of 45 square feet or less, which is: 

(1) Designed primarily for purposes of transportation of property or is a derivation of such a vehicle, 

or 

(2) Designed primarily for transportation of persons and has a capacity of more than 12 persons, or 

(3) Available with special features enabling off-street or off-highway operation and use. 

Lowest Floor is the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area of a building or structure, including 

basement, but excluding any unfinished or flood-resistant enclosure, other than a basement, usable solely 

for vehicle parking, building access or limited storage provided that such enclosure is not built so as to 

render the structure in violation of the non-elevation requirements of the Florida Building Code or ASCE 

24. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 202.] 

Manufactured Home is a structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is eight (8) feet or more 

in width and greater than four hundred (400) square feet, and which is built on a permanent, integral 

chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when attached to the required 

utilities. The term "manufactured home" does not include a "recreational vehicle" or “park trailer”. [Also 

defined in 15C-1.0101, F.A.C.] 

Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision is a parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land divided into two or 

more manufactured home lots for rent or sale. 

Market Value is the price at which a property will change hands between a willing buyer and a willing 

seller, neither party being under compulsion to buy or sell and both having reasonable knowledge of 

relevant facts. As used in the Floodplain Management Regulations, the term refers to the market value of 

buildings and structures, excluding the land and other improvements on the parcel. Market value may be 

established by a qualified independent appraiser, Actual Cash Value (replacement cost depreciated for age 

and quality of construction), or tax assessment value adjusted to approximate market value by a factor 

provided by the Property Appraiser. 

New Construction for the purposes of administration of the Floodplain Management Regulations and the 

flood resistant construction requirements of the Florida Building Code, structures for which the “start of 

construction” commenced on or after January 31, 1979 and includes any subsequent improvements to 

such structures. 

16 

Agenda Page 22



New manufactured Home Park or Subdivision is a manufactured home park or subdivision for which the 

construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed 

(including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site 

grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after January 31, 1979. 

Park Trailer is a transportable unit which has a body width not exceeding fourteen (14) feet and which is 

built on a single chassis and is designed to provide seasonal or temporary living quarters when connected 

to utilities necessary for operation of installed fixtures and appliances. [Defined in section 320.01, F.S.] 

Recreational Vehicle is a vehicle, including a park trailer, which is: [See section 320.01, F.S.) 

(1) Built on a single chassis; 

(2) Four hundred (400) square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection; 

(3) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light-duty truck; and 

(4) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters for 

recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use. 

Special Flood Hazard Area is an area in the floodplain subject to a 1 percent or greater chance of 

flooding in any given year. Special flood hazard areas are shown on FIRMs as Zone A, AO, A1-A30, AE, 

A99, AH, V1-V30, VE or V. [Also defined in FBC, B Section 202.] 

Start of Construction is the date of issuance of permits for new construction and substantial 

improvements, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, 

placement, or other improvement is within 180 days of the date of the issuance. The actual start of 

construction means either the first placement of permanent construction of a building (including a 

manufactured home) on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the 

construction of columns. Permanent construction does not include land preparation (such as clearing, 

grading, or filling), the installation of streets or walkways, excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or 

foundations, the erection of temporary forms or the installation of accessory buildings such as garages or 

sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main buildings. For a substantial improvement, 

the actual “start of construction” means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor or other structural 

part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building. [Also 

defined in FBC, B Section 202.] 

Substantial Damage is damage of any origin sustained by a building or structure whereby the cost of 

restoring the building or structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of 

the market value of the building or structure before the damage occurred. [Also defined in FBC, B 

Section 202.] 

Substantial Improvement is any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, alteration, addition, or other 

improvement of a building or structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value 

of the building or structure before the improvement or repair is started. If the structure has incurred 

"substantial damage", any repairs are considered substantial improvement regardless of the actual repair 

work performed. The term does not, however, include either: [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 202.] 

(1) Any project for improvement of a building required to correct existing health, sanitary, or safety 

17 

Agenda Page 23



code violations identified by the Building Official and that are the minimum necessary to assure 

safe living conditions. 

(2) Any alteration of a historic structure provided the alteration will not preclude the structure's 

continued designation as a historic structure. 

Variance is a grant of relief from the requirements of the Floodplain Management Regulations, or the 

flood resistant construction requirements of the Florida Building Code, which permits construction in a 

manner that would not otherwise be permitted by the Floodplain Management Regulations or the 

Florida Building Code. 

ARTICLE 10.3 FLOOD RESISTANT DEVELOPMENT 

Section 10.3.1 Buildings and Structures: 

(A) Design and Construction of Buildings, Structures and Facilities Exempt from the Florida 

Building Code: Pursuant to LDR Section 10.1.4(C), buildings, structures, and facilities that are exempt 

from the Florida Building Code, including substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage of 

such buildings, structures and facilities, shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the flood 

load and flood resistant construction requirements of ASCE 24. Structures exempt from the Florida 

Building Code that are not walled and roofed buildings shall comply with the requirements of LDR 

Section 10.3.7. 

(B) Minimum Elevation Requirements. All new buildings shall have the lowest floor shall be 

elevated to or above eighteen (18) inches above the crown of road or the elevation specified in the 

Florida Building Code, whichever is higher. 

Section 10.3.2 Subdivisions: 

(A) Minimum Requirements: Subdivision proposals, including proposals for manufactured home 

parks and subdivisions, shall be reviewed to determine that: 

(1) Such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize flood damage and will be 

reasonably safe from flooding; 

(2) All public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electric, communications, and water systems 

are located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage; and 

(3) Adequate drainage is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards; in Zones AH and AO, 

adequate drainage paths shall be provided to guide floodwaters around and away from proposed 

structures. 

(B) Subdivision Plats: Where any portion of proposed subdivisions, including manufactured home 

parks and subdivisions, lies within a flood hazard area, the following shall be required: 

(1) Delineation of flood hazard areas, floodway boundaries and flood zones, and design flood 

elevations, as appropriate, shall be shown on preliminary plats; 

(2) Where the subdivision has more than 50 lots or is larger than 5 acres and base flood elevations 

are not included on the FIRM, the base flood elevations determined in accordance with LDR 

Section 10.1.5(B)(1); and 

(3) Compliance with the site improvement and utilities requirements of LDR Section 10.3.3. 

18 

Agenda Page 24



Section 10.3.3 Site Improvements, Utilities and Limitations: 

(A) Minimum Requirements: All proposed new development shall be reviewed to determine that: 

(1) Such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize or eliminate flood damage and will be 

reasonably safe from flooding; 

(2) All public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electric, communications, and water systems 

are located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage; and 

(3) Adequate drainage is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards; in Zones AH and AO, 

adequate drainage paths shall be provided to guide floodwaters around and away from proposed 

structures. 

(B) Sanitary Sewage Facilities: All new and replacement sanitary sewage facilities, private sewage 

treatment plants (including all pumping stations and collector systems), and on-site waste disposal 

systems shall be designed in accordance with the standards for onsite sewage treatment and disposal 

systems in Chapter 64E-6, F.A.C. and ASCE 24 Chapter 7 to minimize or eliminate infiltration of 

floodwaters into the facilities and discharge from the facilities into flood waters, and impairment of the 

facilities and systems. 

(C) Water Supply Facilities: All new and replacement water supply facilities shall be designed in 

accordance with the water well construction standards in Chapter 62-532.500, F.A.C. and ASCE 24 

Chapter 7 to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the systems. 

(D) Limitations on Placement of Fill: Subject to the limitations of the Floodplain Management 

Regulations, fill shall be designed to be stable under conditions of flooding including rapid rise and rapid 

drawdown of floodwaters, prolonged inundation, and protection against flood-related erosion and scour. 

In addition to these requirements, if intended to support buildings and structures (Zone A only), fill shall 

comply with the requirements of the Florida Building Code. 

Section 10.3.4 Manufactured Homes: 

(A) General: All manufactured homes installed in flood hazard areas shall be installed by an installer 

that is licensed pursuant to section 320.8249, F.S., and shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 

15C-1, F.A.C. and the requirements of the Floodplain Management Regulations. 

(B) Foundations: All new manufactured homes and replacement manufactured homes installed in flood 

hazard areas shall be installed on permanent, reinforced foundations that are designed in accordance with 

the foundation requirements of the Florida Building Code, Residential Section R322.2 and the Floodplain 

Management Regulations. Foundations for manufactured homes subject to LDR Section 10.3.4(F) are 

permitted to be reinforced piers or other foundation elements of at least equivalent strength. 

(C) Anchoring: All new manufactured homes and replacement manufactured homes shall be 

installed using methods and practices which minimize flood damage and shall be securely anchored to 

an adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse or lateral movement. Methods 

of anchoring include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground anchors. This 

anchoring requirement is in addition to applicable state and local anchoring requirements for wind 

resistance. 

19 

Agenda Page 25



(D) Elevation: Manufactured homes that are placed, replaced, or substantially improved shall comply 

with LDR Section 10.3.4(E) or 10.3.4(F) as applicable. 

(E) General Elevation Requirement: Unless subject to the requirements of LDR Section 10.3.4(F), all 

manufactured homes that are placed, replaced, or substantially improved on sites located: (a) outside of a 

manufactured home park or subdivision; (b) in a new manufactured home park or subdivision; (c) in an 

expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision; or (d) in an existing manufactured home 

park or subdivision upon which a manufactured home has incurred "substantial damage" as the result of a 

flood, shall be elevated such that the bottom of the frame is at or above the elevation required, as applicable 

to the flood hazard area, in the Florida Building Code, Residential Section R322.2 (Zone A). 

(F) Elevation Requirement for Certain Existing Manufactured Home Parks and Subdivisions: 

Manufactured homes that are not subject to LDR Section 10.3.4(E) including manufactured homes that 

are placed, replaced, or substantially improved on sites located in an existing manufactured home park or 

subdivision, unless on a site where substantial damage as result of flooding has occurred, shall be elevated 

such that either the: 

(1) Bottom of the frame of the manufactured home is at or above the elevation required in the 

Florida Building Code, Residential Section R322.2 (Zone A); or 

(2) Bottom of the frame is supported by reinforced piers or other foundation elements of at 

least equivalent strength that are not less than 36 inches in height above grade. 

(G) Enclosures: Enclosed areas below elevated manufactured homes shall comply with the requirements 

of the Florida Building Code, Residential Section R322.2. 

(H) Utility Equipment: Utility equipment that serves manufactured homes, including electric, heating, 

ventilation, plumbing, and air conditioning equipment and other service facilities, shall comply with the 

requirements of the Florida Building Code, Residential Section R322. 

Section 10.3.5 Recreational Vehicles and Park Trailers. 

(A) Temporary Placement: Recreational vehicles and park trailers placed temporarily in flood hazard 

areas shall: 

(1) Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days; or 

(2) Be fully licensed and ready for highway use, which means the recreational vehicle or park 

model is on wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick-disconnect type 

utilities and security devices, and has no permanent attachments such as additions, rooms, stairs, 

decks and porches. 

(B) Permanent Placement: Recreational vehicles and park trailers that do not meet the limitations in 

LDR Section 10.3.5(A) for temporary placement shall meet the requirements of LDR Section 10.3.4 for 

manufactured homes. 

Section 10.3.6 Tanks: 

(A) Underground Tanks: Underground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be anchored to prevent 

flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads during 

conditions of the design flood, including the effects of buoyancy assuming the tank is empty. 

20 

Agenda Page 26



(B) Above-Ground Tanks, not Elevated: Above-ground tanks that do not meet the elevation 

requirements of LDR Section 10.3.6(C) shall be permitted in flood hazard areas (Zone A), provided 

the tanks are anchored or otherwise designed and constructed to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral 

movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads during conditions of the design flood, 

including the effects of buoyancy assuming the tank is empty and the effects of flood-borne debris. 

(C) Above-Ground Tanks, Elevated: Above-ground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be attached to 

and elevated to or above the design flood elevation on a supporting structure that is designed to prevent 

flotation, collapse or lateral movement during conditions of the design flood. Tank-supporting structures 

shall meet the foundation requirements of the applicable flood hazard area. 

(D) Tank Inlets and Vents: Tank inlets, fill openings, outlets and vents shall be: 

(1) At or above the design flood elevation or fitted with covers designed to prevent the inflow of 

floodwater or outflow of the contents of the tanks during conditions of the design flood; and 

(2) Anchored to prevent lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, 

including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the design flood. 

Section 10.3.7 Other Development: 

(A) General Requirements for Other Development: All development, including man-made changes to 

improved or unimproved real estate for which specific provisions are not specified in the Floodplain 

Management Regulations or the Florida Building Code, shall: 

(1) Be located and constructed to minimize flood damage; 

(2) Be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrostatic loads, 

including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the design flood; 

(3) Be constructed of flood damage-resistant materials; and 

(4) Have mechanical, plumbing, and electrical systems above the design flood elevation or meet the 

requirements of ASCE 24, except that minimum electric service required to address life safety 

and electric code requirements is permitted below the design flood elevation provided it 

conforms to the provisions of the electrical part of building code for wet locations. 

Section 3: For the purposes of jurisdictional applicability, this Article shall apply in the City of Westlake. 

This Article shall apply to all applications for development, including building permit applications and 

subdivision proposals, submitted on or after the effective date of this Article. 

Section 4: That various sections of the Land Development Regulations of the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Westlake, Florida, be and the same are hereby amended to update all cross references that relate to 

this new Article. 

Section 5: That should any section or provision of this ordinance or any portion thereof, any paragraph, 

sentence, or word be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not 

affect the validity of the remainder hereof as a whole or part thereof other than the part declared to be 

invalid. 

Section 6: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith be, and the same are hereby 

repealed. 

21 

Agenda Page 27



Section 7: That this ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage on second and final 

reading. 

PASSED on this 8th day of October, 2018 on first reading by the City Council for the City of Westlake. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by City Council for the City of Westlake, on this ______ day of, 

November 2018. 

City of Westlake 

Roger Manning, Mayor 

Sandra Demarco, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form and Sufficiency 

Pam E. Booker, City Attorney 

22 

Agenda Page 28



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fifth Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 29



 1 

 
        October 8, 2018 

          

RESOLUTION 2018-28 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF WESTLAKE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE FINAL 
PLAT OF WATERS EDGE DRIVE, LOCATED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS A PORTION OF LAND LYING IN 
SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 43 EAST, RANGE 40 EAST, IN THE CITY OF WESTLAKE, PALM BEACH COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR RECORDATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

  
 WHEREAS, Minto PBLH, LLC, a Florida Limited Liability Company, as the Applicant has requested 
approval Waters Edge Drive, Final Plat, described by metes and bounds description as a parcel of land 
lying in Section 12, Township 43 South, Range 40 East, in the City of Westlake, Palm Beach County, Florida, 
as described in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Westlake has the exclusive jurisdiction to approve the plat pursuant to 
Florida Statutes, §177.071; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the application has been reviewed and approved by a Professional Surveyor and 
Mapper for the City of Westlake, and said Surveyor and Mapper has found the application to be consistent 
with the requirements under Florida Statutes, Chapter 177; and 
 

WHEREAS, the building staff, engineering staff and planning staff for the City of Westlake has 
reviewed the application, the final plat and the boundary survey, and the collective staff has 
recommended approval; and   
 
 WHEREAS, after careful review and consideration, the collective staff has determined that this 
application has complied with the City of Westlake’s interim Land Development Codes and Florida law. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF WESTLAKE, FLORIDA, 
THAT: 
 
Section 1: The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
Section 2: The City Council for the City of Westlake hereby approves the final plat and boundary 

survey for Waters Edge Drive, Final Plat, as described in the attached Exhibit “A”, 
containing approximately four (4) acres, which is located in the City of Westlake, and in 
Palm Beach County, Florida. 

 
Section 3. The applicant shall provide a certified copy of the recorded plat and the applicant shall 

cover the costs of recording the plat in the public records in and for Palm Beach County 
Florida. 

 
Section 4: This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 

Agenda Page 30



 2 

PASSED AND APPROVED by City Council for the City of Westlake, on this 8th day 
 
 

of October, 2018.   
 
 

__________________________________________ 
City of Westlake 
Roger Manning, Mayor 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
 Sandra Demarco, City Clerk  
 
 
      __________________________________________ 

Approved as to Form and Sufficiency 
Pam E. Booker, City Attorney 

Agenda Page 31



GeoPoint
Surveying, Inc.

Licensed Business Number LB 7768

4152 W. Blue Heron Blvd.

Riviera Beach, FL 33404
www.geopointsurvey.com
Phone: (561) 444-2720

Suite 105

Sheet   No.   1   of   2   Sheets

MORTGAGEE'S JOINDER
AND CONSENT

TITLE CERTIFICATION

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ____________________

WE, FOUNDERS TITLE, A TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, AS DULY AUTHORIZED TO DO BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF
FLORIDA DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT WE HAVE EXAMINED THE TITLE TO THE HEREON DESCRIBED PROPERTY;
THAT WE FIND THE TITLE TO THE PROPERTY IS VESTED IN MINTO PBLH, LLC; THAT THE CURRENT TAXES HAVE
BEEN PAID; AND THAT ALL PALM BEACH COUNTY SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ITEMS, AND ALL OTHER ITEMS HELD
AGAINST SAID LANDS HAVE BEEN SATISFIED; THAT ALL MORTGAGES NOT SATISFIED OR RELEASED OF RECORD
NOR OTHERWISE TERMINATED BY LAW ARE SHOWN HEREON; AND THAT THERE ARE ENCUMBRANCES OF RECORD
BUT THOSE ENCUMBRANCES DO NOT PROHIBIT THE CREATION OF THE SUBDIVISION DEPICTED BY THIS PLAT.

DATED: _____________________________   _______________________________
    HARRY BINNIE, PRESIDENT
    FOUNDERS TITLE

SURVEYOR'S SEAL

DEDICATION:

ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY

ILEX WAY, AS SHOWN HEREON, IS HEREBY DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WESTLAKE, A FLORIDA MUNICIPAL
CORPORATION,  ITS SUCCESSORS AND/OR ASSIGNS,  FOR ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY PURPOSES AND SHALL BE
THE PERPETUAL MAINTENANCE OBLIGATION OF THE CITY OF WESTLAKE.
THE SEMINOLE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, AN INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA,
ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, IS HEREBY GRANTED AND RESERVED AN EASEMENT OVER THE ROAD
RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR ANY AND ALL PURPOSES AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 2000-431, LAWS OF FLORIDA AND
CHAPTERS 189 AND 298, FLORIDA STATUTES, IN SO FAR AS SUCH USES ARE NOT INCONSISTENT WITH ITS
UTILIZATION FOR ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY PURPOSES. RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE INSTALLATION,
MAINTENANCE, OPERATIONS, REPAIR AND/OR REPLACEMENT OF ANY FACILITIES SO INSTALLED SHALL
REMAIN THE PERPETUAL OBLIGATION OF THE SEMINOLE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, WITHOUT RECOURSE
TO THE CITY OF WESTLAKE.

OPEN SPACE TRACTS

TRACTS O.S.T. #1 AND O.S.T. #2, AS SHOWN HEREON, ARE HEREBY RESERVED FOR MINTO PBLH, LLC, A
FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS FOR OPEN SPACE  PURPOSES AND
ARE THE PERPETUAL MAINTENANCE OBLIGATION OF SAID MINTO PBLH, LLC, A FLORIDA LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, WITHOUT RECOURSE TO THE CITY OF WESTLAKE.

UTILITY EASEMENTS
ALL UTILITY EASEMENTS DESCRIBED ON THE PLAT ARE PRIVATE NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENTS UNLESS
EXPRESSLY STATED OTHERWISE THEREIN.  ALL UTILITY RIGHTS AND EASEMENTS ESTABLISHED BY OR
RESERVED BY THIS PLAT ARE HEREBY RESERVED TO THE SEMINOLE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, (A LOCAL
UNIT OF SPECIAL PURPOSE GOVERNMENT ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO CHAPTERS 189 AND 298, FLORIDA
STATUTES, AS A PUBLIC UTILITY PROVIDER OF WATER, SEWER AND RECLAIMED WATER), ITS SUCCESSORS
AND ASSIGNS, SUBJECT TO THOSE CERTAIN RESTRICTION OF RIGHTS, COVENANTS AND DEDICATIONS AS
MAY HEREAFTER BE IMPOSED BY GRANTOR;  PROVIDED FURTHER SAID GRANTS OR ASSIGNMENTS SHALL
NOT BE DEEMED A PUBLIC DEDICATION OF SAID RIGHTS OR EASEMENTS. THE SEMINOLE IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO GRANT OTHER UTILITY PROVIDERS THE ABILITY TO USE THE
EASEMENT, IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION.

SEMINOLE IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH

BEFORE ME PERSONALLY APPEARED SCOTT MASSEY WHO IS PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME, OR HAS PRODUCED
_________________ AS IDENTIFICATION, AND WHO EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AS PRESIDENT OF
SEMINOLE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, AND SEVERALLY ACKNOWLEDGED TO AND BEFORE ME THAT HE EXECUTED
SUCH INSTRUMENT AS SUCH OFFICER OF SAID DISTRICT, AND THAT THE SEAL AFFIXED TO THE FOREGOING
INSTRUMENT IS THE DISTRICT SEAL OF SAID DISTRICT AND THAT IT WAS AFFIXED TO SAID INSTRUMENT BY DUE
AND REGULAR STATUTORY AUTHORITY, AND THAT SAID INSTRUMENT IS THE FREE ACT AND DEED OF SAID
DISTRICT.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF _____________________, 2018.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: _________________                  ____________________________________________

                           NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA

PRINT NAME: ________________________________

COMMISSION NO.  _______________________

(SEAL)

CITY OF WESTLAKE'S APPROVAL

THIS CERTIFIES THAT THIS PLAT HAS BEEN ACCEPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF
WESTLAKE BY A RESOLUTION DULY ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THIS __________ DAY
OF______________________ 2018, IN ACCORDANCE  WITH SEC. 177.071(2), F.S., AND HAS BEEN REVIEWED BY A
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR & MAPPER EMPLOYED BY THE CITY OF WESTLAKE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SEC.
177.081(1), F.S.

ATTEST:  _____________________________                             BY : ________________________________
                  CITY MANAGER ,  KEN CASSEL                                                              CITY MAYOR,   ROGER MANNING

MINTO PBLH, LLC

SURVEYORS NOTES

1. PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENTS ARE SHOWN THUS:  "      " A 1 1/2" BRASS
DISK STAMPED "PRM LB7768" SET IN A 4"X4" CONCRETE MONUMENT.
PERMANENT CONTROL POINTS ARE SHOWN AS THUS: "    " A MAGNETIC NAIL
AND DISK STAMPED "PCP LB7768".  MONUMENTS ARE SHOWN AS THUS: "    " A 1/2"
IRON ROD WITH CAP STAMPED "LB7768".  (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

2. BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE NORTH BOUNDARY  OF
SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH, RANGE 41 EAST, HAVING A GRID BEARING OF
S.89°48'53”E.  BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON, REFER TO THE STATE PLANE
COORDINATE SYSTEM, NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAD 83 / '07) FOR THE
EAST ZONE OF FLORIDA. SAID BASIS OF BEARING IS THE SAME IN THE NORTH
AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAD 83 / '90).

3. NO BUILDING OR ANY KIND OF CONSTRUCTION OR TREES OR SHRUBS SHALL BE
PLACED ON ANY EASEMENT WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF ALL
EASEMENT BENEFICIARIES AND ALL APPLICABLE CITY APPROVALS OR
PERMITS AS REQUIRED FOR SUCH ENCROACHMENTS. THERE WILL BE NO ABOVE
GROUND ENCROACHMENTS WHERE LAKE MAINTENANCE EASEMENTS AND
UTILITY EASEMENTS OVERLAP.

4. THE BUILDING SETBACKS SHALL BE AS REQUIRED BY THE CITY OF WESTLAKE
ZONING REGULATIONS.

5. NOTICE: THIS PLAT, AS RECORDED IN ITS GRAPHIC FORM, IS THE OFFICIAL
DEPICTION OF THE SUBDIVIDED LANDS DESCRIBED HEREIN AND WILL IN NO
CIRCUMSTANCES BE SUPPLANTED IN AUTHORITY BY ANY OTHER GRAPHIC OR
DIGITAL FORM OF THE PLAT.  THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS THAT
ARE NOT RECORDED ON THIS PLAT THAT MAY BE FOUND IN THE PUBLIC
RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY.

6. IN THOSE CASES WHERE EASEMENTS OF DIFFERENT TYPES CROSS OR
OTHERWISE COINCIDE, DRAINAGE EASEMENTS SHALL HAVE FIRST PRIORITY,
UTILITY EASEMENTS SHALL HAVE SECOND PRIORITY, ACCESS EASEMENTS
SHALL HAVE THIRD PRIORITY, AND ALL OTHER EASEMENTS SHALL BE
SUBORDINATE TO THESE WITH THEIR PRIORITIES BEING DETERMINED BY USE
RIGHTS GRANTED.

7. ALL LINES INTERSECTING CIRCULAR CURVES ARE RADIAL UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

8. COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON ARE FLORIDA STATE PLANE GRID
DATUM = NAD83 2007 ADJUSTMENT
ZONE = FLORIDA EAST
LINEAR UNITS = US SURVEY FEET
COORDINATE SYSTEM = 1983 STATE PLANE
PROJECTION = TRANSVERSE MERCATOR
ALL DISTANCES ARE GROUND
SCALE FACTOR: 1.0000
GROUND DISTANCE X SCALE FACTOR = GRID DISTANCE
PLAT BEARING = GRID BEARING
NO ROTATION
ALL TIES TO SECTION CORNERS AND QUARTER CORNERS ARE GENERATED
FROM MEASURED VALUES

AREA TABLE (ACRES)
1. ROADWAY = 3.382
2. OPEN SPACE TRACT 1 = 0.300
3. OPEN SPACE TRACT 2 = 0.357

          TOTAL = 4.039 ACRES

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, MINTO PBLH, LLC, A FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAS CAUSED THESE PRESENTS
TO BE SIGNED BY ITS MANAGER AND ITS COMPANY SEAL TO BE AFFIXED HERETO BY AND WITH THE AUTHORITY
OF ITS MEMBERS THIS _______ DAY OF ___________________, 2018.

MINTO PBLH, LLC
A FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

WITNESS:          ______________________________ BY: _____________________________
JOHN F. CARTER, MANAGER

PRINT NAME:   ______________________________

WITNESS:          ______________________________

PRINT NAME:   ______________________________

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH

BEFORE ME PERSONALLY APPEARED JOHN F. CARTER WHO IS PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME, OR HAS PRODUCED
_________________ AS IDENTIFICATION, AND WHO EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AS MANAGER OF MINTO
PBLH, LLC, A FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, AND SEVERALLY ACKNOWLEDGED TO AND BEFORE ME THAT
HE EXECUTED SUCH INSTRUMENT AS SUCH OFFICER OF SAID COMPANY, AND THAT THE SEAL AFFIXED TO SAID
INSTRUMENT IS THE CORPORATE SEAL OF SAID COMPANY AND THAT IT WAS AFFIXED TO SAID INSTRUMENT BY
DUE AND REGULAR CORPORATE AUTHORITY, AND THAT SAID INSTRUMENT IS THE FREE ACT AND DEED OF SAID
COMPANY.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF _____________________, 2018.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: _________________ _____________________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA

PRINT NAME: ____________________________________

COMMISSION NO.  _____________________

(SEAL)

CITY OF WESTLAKE
ACCEPTANCE

CITY OF WESTLAKE
APPROVAL

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH

BEFORE ME PERSONALLY APPEARED ____________________________________ (PRINTED NAME) WHO IS PERSONALLY
KNOWN TO ME, OR HAS PRODUCED ___________________________ AS IDENTIFICATION, AND WHO EXECUTED THE
FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AS  _____________________ OF THE CITY OF WESTLAKE, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, AND
SEVERALLY ACKNOWLEDGED TO AND BEFORE ME THAT [HE] [SHE] EXECUTED SUCH INSTRUMENT AS SUCH
OFFICER OF SAID CORPORATION, AND THAT THE SEAL AFFIXED TO THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT IS THE
CORPORATE SEAL (IF AVAILABLE) OF SAID CORPORATION AND THAT IT WAS AFFIXED TO SAID INSTRUMENT BY
DUE AND REGULAR CORPORATE AUTHORITY, AND THAT SAID INSTRUMENT IS THE FREE ACT AND DEED OF SAID
CORPORATION.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF _____________________, 2018.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: _________________ _____________________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA

  PRINT NAME: ____________________________________

  COMMISSION NO.  _____________________

 (SEAL)

ACCEPTANCE OF DEDICATION

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH

THE CITY OF WESTLAKE, FLORIDA, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, HEREBY ACCEPTS THE DEDICATION OF ROAD
RIGHT-OF-WAY AS STATED AND SHOWN HEREON, AND HEREBY ACCEPTS ITS MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR
SAME AS STATED HEREON, DATED THIS _______ DAY OF ________________________, 2018.

CITY OF WESTLAKE
          A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

WITNESS:          ______________________________  

PRINT NAME:   ______________________________
BY:    _______________________________

WITNESS:          ______________________________ CITY MAYOR,   ROGER MANNING

PRINT NAME:   ______________________________

ACCEPTANCE OF DEDICATIONS & RESERVATIONS

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH

SEMINOLE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, AN INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, HEREBY
ACCEPTS THE DEDICATIONS AND RESERVATIONS TO SAID DISTRICT AS STATED AND SHOWN HEREON, AND
HEREBY ACCEPTS ITS MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR SAME AS STATED HEREON, DATED THIS _______ DAY OF
________________________, 2018.

          SEMINOLE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, AN INDEPENDENT
       SPECIAL DISTRICT  OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

WITNESS:          ______________________________ BY: _____________________________
          SCOTT MASSEY, PRESIDENT

PRINT NAME:   ______________________________

WITNESS:          ______________________________

PRINT NAME:   ______________________________

MORTGAGEE'S JOINDER AND CONSENT
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFIES THAT IT IS THE HOLDER OF A MORTGAGE, UPON THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON
AND DOES HEREBY JOIN IN AND CONSENT TO THE DEDICATION OF THE LAND DESCRIBED IN SAID DEDICATION BY THE
OWNER THEREOF AND AGREES THAT ITS MORTGAGE WHICH IS RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 28283 AT PAGE[S] 1060
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, SHALL BE SUBORDINATED TO THE DEDICATION SHOWN
HEREON.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE SAID CORPORATION HAS CAUSED THESE PRESENTS TO BE SIGNED BY ITS VICE PRESIDENT THIS
_____ DAY OF ______________________, 2018.

                   WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
                                           A NATIONAL BANKING

ASSOCIATION

WITNESS:          ______________________________ BY: ________________________________________________
                                 SIGNATURE OF VICE PRESIDENT

PRINT NAME:   ______________________________
                                            ________________________________________________

WITNESS:          ______________________________                                PRINT NAME                                     

PRINT NAME:   ______________________________

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH

BEFORE ME PERSONALLY APPEARED ____________________________________ (PRINTED NAME) WHO IS PERSONALLY
KNOWN TO ME, OR HAS PRODUCED ___________________________ AS IDENTIFICATION, AND WHO EXECUTED THE
FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AS VICE PRESIDENT OF WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, A NATIONAL
BANKING ASSOCIATION, AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO AND BEFORE ME THAT [HE] [SHE] EXECUTED SUCH
INSTRUMENT AS SUCH OFFICER OF SAID ASSOCIATION, AND THAT SAID INSTRUMENT IS THE FREE ACT AND DEED
OF SAID ASSOCIATION.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF _____________________, 2018.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: _________________ _____________________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA

PRINT NAME: ____________________________________

COMMISSION NO.  _____________________

(SEAL)

BEING A PLAT OF A PORTION OF
SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH, RANGE 40 EAST

 CITY OF WESTLAKE, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

WATERS EDGE DRIVE

DEDICATION AND RESERVATIONS:

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT MINTO PBLH, LLC, A FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY,
OWNERS OF THE LAND SHOWN AND DESCRIBED HEREON AS WATERS EDGE DRIVE, LYING  IN  SECTION  12,
TOWNSHIP  43  SOUTH,  RANGE  40  EAST,  CITY  OF  WESTLAKE,  PALM  BEACH  COUNTY,  FLORIDA , BEING MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

DESCRIPTION:

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH, RANGE 40 EAST, PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH, RANGE 40 EAST; THENCE
S.01°33'05"W. ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 1, A DISTANCE OF 250.33 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
NORTH  LINE OF THE 80 FOOT M-CANAL EASEMENT AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 1156, PAGE 58 OF THE
PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA AND AS SHOWN IN ROAD PLAT BOOK 6, PAGE 136 OF
SAID PUBLIC RECORDS, AND AS MONUMENTED; THENCE S.88°36'57"W. ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE 80
FOOT M-CANAL EASEMENT, A DISTANCE OF 3776.52 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF
SEMINOLE PRATT WHITNEY ROAD AS RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 1544, PAGE 378 AND OFFICIAL
RECORD BOOK 1640, PAGE 1626 BOTH OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS; THENCE S.01°42'52"W. ALONG SAID EAST
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SEMINOLE PRATT WHITNEY ROAD, A DISTANCE OF 8257.61 FEET; THENCE
S.88°17'08"E., A DISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY CORNER OF PROPOSED ADDITIONAL
RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SEMINOLE PRATT WHITNEY ROAD; THENCE  S.43°17'08"E., ALONG SAID PROPOSED
ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY, A DISTANCE OF 28.28 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S.88°17'08"E.,
A DISTANCE OF 301.55 FEET; THENCE S.75°00'54"E., A DISTANCE OF 52.28 FEET; THENCE S.88°17'08"E., A
DISTANCE OF 202.17 FEET; THENCE N.46°42'52"E., A DISTANCE OF 15.56 FEET; THENCE S.88°17'08"E., A DISTANCE
OF 386.66 FEET; THENCE S.75°52'41"E., A DISTANCE OF 51.20 FEET; THENCE S.88°17'08"E., A DISTANCE OF 191.23
FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET;
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 89°58'29", A
DISTANCE OF 62.81 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N.01°44'17"E., A DISTANCE OF 41.17 FEET; THENCE
S.88°17'31"E., A DISTANCE OF 107.96 FEET TO A NON-TANGENT INTERSECTION TO A CURVE CONCAVE
EASTERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 595.00 FEET, AND A RADIAL BEARING OF S.88°17'31"E. AT SAID INTERSECTION;
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 06°25'48", A
DISTANCE OF 66.77 FEET TO A POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY
WITH A RADIUS OF 8.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 44°19'34", A DISTANCE OF 6.19 FEET TO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE AND A
NON-TANGENT INTERSECTION TO A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 48.43 FEET AND A
RADIAL BEARING OF S.37°02'21"W. AT SAID INTERSECTION; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE ARC OF
SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 54°29'42", A DISTANCE OF 46.06 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY;
THENCE S.01°42'52"W., A DISTANCE OF 49.81 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE
NORTHWESTERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG THE ARC OF SAID
CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 49°26'45", A DISTANCE OF 34.52 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY;
THENCE S.51°09'38"W., A DISTANCE OF 27.73 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE
NORTHERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG THE ARC SAID CURVE THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 40°33'15", A DISTANCE OF 28.31 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY;  THENCE N.88°17'08"W., A
DISTANCE OF 40.26 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY WITH A RADIUS OF
40.00 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 34°07'19",
A DISTANCE OF 23.82 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N.54°09'49"W., A DISTANCE OF 27.38 FEET TO A
POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 10.00 FEET; THENCE
WESTERLY, ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 34°07'17", A DISTANCE OF 5.96
FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N.88°17'08"W., A DISTANCE OF 537.10 FEET; THENCE S.46°42'52"W., A
DISTANCE OF 15.56 FEET; THENCE N.88°17'08"W., A DISTANCE OF 276.68 FEET; THENCE N.75°52'41"W., A
DISTANCE OF 51.20 FEET; THENCE N.88°17'08"W., A DISTANCE OF 329.72 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID  PROPOSED
ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SEMINOLE PRATT WHITNEY ROAD; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID
PROPOSED ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES: 1) N.46°42'52"E., A
DISTANCE OF 26.87 FEET; 2) THENCE N.01°42'52"E., A DISTANCE OF 88.00 FEET; 3) THENCE N.88°17'08"W., A
DISTANCE OF 12.00 FEET; 4) THENCE N.43°17'08"W., A DISTANCE OF 26.87 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING: 4.039 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

HAVE CAUSED THE SAME TO BE SURVEYED AND PLATTED AS SHOWN HEREON AND DO HEREBY DEDICATE
AND RESERVE AS FOLLOWS:

SURVEYOR & MAPPER'S CERTIFICATE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE PLAT SHOWN HEREON IS A TRUE AND CORRECT
REPRESENTATION OF A SURVEY MADE UNDER MY RESPONSIBLE DIRECTION AND
SUPERVISION; THAT SAID SURVEY IS ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE
AND BELIEF; THAT PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENTS ("P.R.M.S") HAVE BEEN
PLACED AS REQUIRED BY LAW, AND THAT PERMANENT CONTROL POINTS ("P.C.P.S"),
AND MONUMENTS ACCORDING TO SEC. 177.091(9), F.S., WILL BE SET UNDER THE
GUARANTEES POSTED WITH THE CITY OF WESTLAKE FOR THE REQUIRED
IMPROVEMENTS; AND, FURTHER, THAT THE SURVEY DATA COMPLIES WITH ALL
THE REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER 177, FLORIDA STATUTES, AS AMENDED, AND THE
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF WESTLAKE, FLORIDA.

DATE: ___________________ __________________________________________
   LUIS J. ORTIZ, P.S.M.
   LICENSE NO. LS7006
   STATE OF FLORIDA

THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY

LUIS J. ORTIZ, P.S.M.

LS7006 STATE OF FLORIDA.

GEOPOINT SURVEYING, INC.

4152 WEST BLUE HERON BOULEVARD, SUITE 105,

RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33404.

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NO. LB7768

Agenda Page 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE   OF   FLORIDA   } COUNTY OF PALM BEACH  } S.S. THIS INSTRUMENT WAS FILED FOR  RECORD AT ______________ M. THIS ___ DAY OF __________, 2018_____ AND DULY RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK NO. _____________ ON PAGE ________________ SHARON R. BOCK,  CLERK AND COMPTROLLER BY:__________________, D.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
No Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION   MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHERN BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
OKEECHOBEE BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROYAL PALM BEACH BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEMINOLE PRATT  WHITNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERSIMMON BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN CENTER PARKWAY



LIMITS

OF PLAT

LIMITS

OF PLAT

LIMITS

OF PLAT

LIMITS

OF PLAT

LIMITS

OF PLAT

P.O.B.

ADDITIONAL

10' RIGHT OF WAY

ADDITIONAL

10' RIGHT OF WAY

80' RURAL PARKWAY

EASEMENT

(O.R. 27898, PG 1321)

80' RURAL PARKWAY

EASEMENT

(O.R. 27898, PG 1321)

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

O.S.T. # 2 / 10' U.E.

O.S.T. # 1 / 10' U.E.

O.S.T. # 2 / 10' U.E.

O.S.T. # 1 / 10' U.E.

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

S
E

M
I
N

O
L
E

-
P

R
A

T
T

 
W

H
I
T

N
E

Y
 
R

O
A

D

 
(
W

I
D

T
H

 
V

A
R

I
E

S
)

S
 
0
1
°
4
2
'
5
2
"
 
W

 
(
C

E
N

T
E

R
L
I
N

E
)

FUTURE

R/W

WATERS EDGE DRIVE

O.S.T.#

2 / 10' U.E.

L E G E N D

D
W

G
 
N

A
M

E
:
 
W

:
\
W

E
S

T
L

A
K

E
\
W

E
S

T
L

A
K

E
 
-
 
N

A
V

D
8

8
\
P

L
A

T
S

\
W

A
T

E
R

S
 
E

D
G

E
-
C

S
-
E

4
\
C

S
-
E

4
_

W
A

T
E

R
S

 
E

D
G

E
-
P

L
A

T
M

A
S

.
D

W
G

 
 
 
 
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

 
B

Y
:
 
S

E
R

G
I
O

 
M

A
C

H
A

D
O

 
 
 
O

N
:
 
7

/
1

6
/
2

0
1

8
 
2

:
4

6
 
P

M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L

A
S

T
 
S

A
V

E
D

 
B

Y
:
 
S

E
R

G
I
O

M
 
 
 
O

N
:
 
7

/
1

6
/
2

0
1

8
 
2

:
4

6
 
P

M

BEING A PLAT OF A PORTION OF
SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH, RANGE 40 EAST

 CITY OF WESTLAKE, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

WATERS EDGE DRIVE

Sheet   No.   2   of   2   Sheets

SCALE: 1" =60'

NORTHEAST CORNER

SECTION 6-43-41

FOUND BRASS DISK IN

CONCRETE "P.B.C."

N:884609.6818  E:891407.3638

NAD83 (2007 ADJUSTMENT)

CERTIFIED CORNER

RECORD #107591

3136
1 6

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

NORTHEAST CORNER OF

SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 43 S., RANGE 40 E.

SET 3.5" IRON PIPE "PUBLIC LAND SURVEY

CORNER-TALLAHASSEE MERIDIAN"

BRASS DISK  "10' EAST" SET IN CONCRETE

FOUND 10' EAST ON SECTION LINE

N: 884626.7147

E: 886137.1629

NAD83 (2007 ADJUSTMENT)

CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD #107597

EAST 1/4 CORNER SECTION 1-43-40

BRASS DISK IN CONCRETE "P.B.C."

CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD # 107599

N:881943.9584 (83/07)

E:886064.5056 (83/07)

M-CANAL

COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON ARE
FLORIDA STATE PLANE GRID
DATUM = NAD83 - 2007 ADJUSTMENT
ZONE = FLORIDA EAST
LINEAR UNITS = US SURVEY FEET
COORDINATE SYSTEM = 1983 STATE PLANE
PROJECTION = TRANSVERSE MERCATOR
ALL DISTANCES ARE GROUND
SCALE FACTOR: 1.0000
GROUND DISTANCE X SCALE FACTOR = GRID DISTANCE
PLAT BEARING = GRID BEARING
NO ROTATION
ALL TIES TO SECTION CORNERS AND QUARTER CORNERS
ARE GENERATED FROM MEASURED VALUES

NORTHWEST CORNER SECTION 1-43-40

FOUND BRASS DISK IN CONCRETE "P.B.C."

N:884612.3299,  E:880484.6585

NAD83 (2007 ADJUSTMENT)

CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD #107585

2 1

1211
14 13 SOUTHWEST CORNER

SECTION 12-43-40

BASIS OF BEARINGS

BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE NORTH BOUNDARY

OF  SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH, RANGE 41 EAST, HAVING A GRID

BEARING OF S.89°48'53”E. (MEASURED). BEARINGS SHOWN

HEREON, REFER TO THE STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NORTH

AMERICA DATUM OF 1983 (NAD 83 - '07) FOR THE EAST ZONE OF

FLORIDA. SAID BASIS OF BEARING IS THE SAME IN THE NORTH

AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAD 83 - '90).

GeoPoint
Surveying, Inc.

Licensed Business Number LB 7768

4152 W. Blue Heron Blvd.

Riviera Beach, FL 33404
www.geopointsurvey.com
Phone: (561) 444-2720

Suite 105

Agenda Page 33

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH SOUTH  QUARTER (1/4)  LINE OF SECTION 12,  TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH,  RANGE 40 EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH SOUTH  QUARTER (1/4)  LINE OF SECTION 12,  TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH,  RANGE 40 EAST PER K.C. MOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERLY CORNER OF PROPOSED ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SEMINOLE-PRATT WHITNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SEMINOLE-PRATT WHITNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SEMINOLE-PRATT WHITNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH AMERICAN DATUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PALM BEACH COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.B.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE/PAGES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PG./PGs.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCH LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 Δ

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.R./O.R.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD PLAT BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.P.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.S.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIS OF BEARING NORTH BOUNDARY  OF SECTION 6,  TOWNSHIP 43 S., RANGE 41 E. S.89°48'53"E., 5270.23'(MEASURED) S.89°48'52"E., 5270.39'(COUNTY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 31,  TOWNSHIP 42 S., RANGE 41 E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGE 40 RANGE 41

AutoCAD SHX Text
2683.74' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°33'05"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 43 S, RANGE 40 E (S 01°33'05" W 250.33')   

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE 80' M-CANAL ROAD EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE 80' M-CANAL ROAD  EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°36'57"W    3776.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-CANAL 250' RIGHT-OF-WAY (D.B. 1156, PG. 58)

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-CANAL ROAD (R.P.B. 6, PG. 136) 80' CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH EASEMENT (D.B. 1156, PG. 58) NOTE: NOT IN USE AS PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH BOUNDARY OF SECTION 1,  TOWNSHIP 43 S., RANGE 40 E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY  LINE OF M-CANAL (D.B. 1156, PG. 58)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST R/W LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST R/W LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SEMINOLE-PRATT WHITNEY ROAD (O.R.B. 1544. PG. 378) (O.R.B. 1640, PG. 1626)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY  LINE OF M-CANAL (D.B. 1156, PG. 58)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10°52'32"E  8759.19' (GRID)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2313.22' (GRID)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N53°01'37"E    

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE:  THIS PLAT, AS RECORDED IN ITS GRAPHIC FORM, IS THE        OFFICIAL DEPICTION OF THE SUBDIVIDED LANDS DESCRIBED        HEREIN AND WILL IN NO CIRCUMSTANCES BE SUPPLANTED        IN AUTHORITY BY ANY OTHER GRAPHIC OR DIGITAL FORM         OF THE PLAT. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS THAT        ARE NOT RECORDED ON THIS PLAT THAT MAY BE FOUND IN        THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF THIS COUNTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°42'52"W  8257.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET PERMANENT  REFERENCE MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDICATES (S.I.R.) SET IRON ROD LB7768

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT CONTROL POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.



Section:  12  Twn. 43S Rng. 40E

07/24/18 ~~~~~~

~~~GAR

SWM

Sheet   No.   1   of   2   Sheets
~~~~~~

07/23/18

D
W

G
 
N

A
M

E
:
 
W

:
\
W

E
S

T
L

A
K

E
\
W

E
S

T
L

A
K

E
 
-
 
N

A
V

D
8

8
\
S

U
R

V
E

Y
\
W

A
T

E
R

S
 
E

D
G

E
-
C

S
-
E

4
\
W

A
T

E
R

S
 
E

D
G

E
_

C
S

-
E

4
_

B
S

.
D

W
G

 
 
 
 
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

 
B

Y
:
 
S

E
R

G
I
O

 
M

A
C

H
A

D
O

 
 
 
O

N
:
 
8

/
1

4
/
2

0
1

8
 
5

:
2

8
 
P

M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L

A
S

T
 
S

A
V

E
D

 
B

Y
:
 
S

E
R

G
I
O

M
 
 
 
O

N
:
 
8

/
1

/
2

0
1

8
 
5

:
3

3
 
P

M

GeoPoint
Surveying, Inc.

Licensed Business Number LB 7768

4152 W. Blue Heron Blvd.

Riviera Beach, FL 33404
www.geopointsurvey.com
Phone: (561) 444-2720

Suite 105

SURVEYOR'S NOTES:
1) EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAYS, SET BACK LINES, RESERVATIONS, AGREEMENTS AND OTHER SIMILAR MATTERS TAKEN FROM

OWNERSHIP AND ENCUMBRANCE REPORT PREPARED BY FOUNDERS TITLE, DATED MAY XX, 2018.

2) THIS SURVEY IS LIMITED TO ABOVE GROUND VISIBLE IMPROVEMENTS ALONG AND NEAR THE BOUNDARY LINES, AND THAT NOTHING

BELOW THE GROUND WAS LOCATED INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO FOUNDATIONS (FOOTINGS), UTILITIES, ETC. (INTERIOR

OCCUPATION NOT LOCATED)

3) BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON ARE GRID BEARINGS BASED ON THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH, RANGE 

41 EAST, HAVING A GRID BEARING OF S.89°48'53”E.  THE GRID BEARINGS, AS SHOWN HEREON, REFER TO THE STATE PLANE

COORDINATE SYSTEM, NORTH AMERICA DATUM OF 1983 (NAD 83 - '07) FOR THE EAST ZONE OF FLORIDA. SAID BASIS OF BEARING IS THE

SAME IN THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAD 83 - '90).

4) THE SUBJECT PROPERTY LIES WITHIN THE CITY OF WESTLAKE, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, WHERE THE FLOOD ZONE IS

UNDETERMINED AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY.

5) THIS SURVEY IS BASED ON PREVIOUS FIELD SURVEYS, DOCUMENTS OF RECORD, FOUND MONUMENTS, EXHIBITS, AND HISTORICALLY

USED CORNERS, AS WELL AS THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION SHOWN HEREON. IMPROVEMENTS LIKE UTILITIES UNDER CONSTRUCTION ARE

NOT LOCATED FOR THE PURPOSE OF SHOWING THE BOUNDARY OF A PROPOSED PLAT.

    THE FOLLOWING ARE REFERENCE SURVEYS USED IN DETERMINING THE BOUNDARY LOCATION FOR CALLERY JUDGE GROVES:

a) THE 'M' CANAL ROAD RIGHT OF WAY MAP, RECORDED IN ROAD PLAT BOOK 6, PAGE 136.

b) BOUNDARY SURVEY OF RESIDENTIAL AT CALLERY JUDGE GROVES, PREPARED BY LIDBERG LAND SURVEYING, INC. (JOB NO.:

04-106-101C), DATED OCTOBER 5, 2007.

c) SKETCH OF SURVEY, PREPARED BY S.P. MUSICK, DATED MARCH 5, 1965.

6) ALL BEARINGS AND DISTANCES (UNITED STATES SURVEY FEET) AS SHOWN HEREON ARE AS DESCRIBED AND MEASURED UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED. MEASUREMENTS MADE ARE TO THE ACCURACY STANDARD OF SUBURBAN OR 1 FOOT IN 7500 FEET.

7) SID AND SWCD EASEMENTS WITHIN BOUNDARY HAVE BEEN RELEASE PER O.R. 28084, PG. 0985.

WESTLAKE
BOUNDARY SURVEY PROPOSED

WATERS EDGE DRIVE

Waters Edge_CS-E4_BS

MINTO COMMUNITIES, LLC

L E G E N D

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

Luis J. Ortiz
LS7006

THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED WITH THE BENEFIT OF  A SEARCH OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY,  STATE OF FLORIDA, COMMENCING  FROM CHICAGO

TITLE  INSURANCE  COMPANY  NUMBER 7430709-90031461 WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF SEPTEMBER  20, 2013 AND CONTINUING  UP TO AND INCLUDING JULY 6, 2018 AT

11:00 P.M.:

OWNER: MINTO PBLH, LLC, A FLORIDA LIMITED  LIABILITY COMPANY, BY VIRTUE OF SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED, FILED OF RECORD  JUNE 23, 2014, IN OFFICIAL  RECORDS

BOOK  26871, PAGE 505 AND  QUIT CLAIM  DEED, FILED OF RECORD  JUNE 23, 2014, IN OFFICIAL  RECORDS BOOK  26871, PAGE 511, BOTH OF THE PUBLIC  RECORDS OF

PALM  BEACH  COUNTY, FLORIDA.

ENCUMBRANCES:

1.    MORTGAGE AND  SECURITY AGREEMENT BY AND  BETWEEN  MINTO PBLH, LLC AND  WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A., AS ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT, FILED OF RECORD  MAY

9, 2016, IN OFFICIAL  RECORDS BOOK 28283, PAGE 1060,  TOGETHER WITH  ABSOLUTE  ASSIGNMENT OF LEASES AND  RENTS, FILED OF RECORD MAY 9, 2016, IN OFFICIAL

RECORDS BOOK 28283, PAGE 1094; ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENTS AFFECTING REAL ESTATE, FILED OF RECORD MAY 9, 2016, IN OFFICIAL  RECORDS BOOK 28283, PAGE

1114;  MORTGAGE MODIFICATION AGREEMENT, FILED OF RECORD DECEMBER 29, 2016, IN OFFICIAL  RECORDS BOOK 28798, PAGE 1467; MORTGAGE SPREADER

AGREEMENT, FILED OF RECORD FEBRUARY 16, 2017, IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 28896, PAGE 893, MORTGAGE MODIFICATION AND  FUTURE ADVANCE AGREEMENT, FIELD

OF RECORD JANUARY 3,  2018, IN OFFICIAL  RECORDS BOOK 29564, PAGE 571, ALL OF THE PUBLIC  RECORDS OF PALM  BEACH  COUNTY, FLORIDA.

2.   FINANCING STATEMENT FORM  UCC-1, BY AND  BETWEEN  MINTO PBLH, LLC AND  WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A., AS ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT, FILED OF RECORD  MAY 9,

2016, IN OFFICIAL  RECORDS BOOK 28283, PAGE 1134; TOGETHER WITH  FINANCING STATEMENT FORM  UCC-3, FILED OF RECORD  JUNE 21, 2016, IN OFFICIAL  RECORDS

BOOK 28384, PAGE 733; FINANCING STATEMENT FORM  UCC-3, FILED OF RECORD JUNE 22,2016, IN OFFICIAL  RECORDS BOOK 28387, PAGE 509; AND  FINANCING STATEMENT

FORM  UCC-3, FILED OF RECORD  FEBRUARY 16, 2017, IN OFFICIAL  RECORDS BOOK 28896, PAGE 903, ALL OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM  BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA.

EASEMENTS AND OTHER MATTERS AFFECTING TITLE:

1.  CONTRACT  BETWEEN WEST PALM BEACH WATER COM. AND INDIAN TRAIL RANCH, INC., RECORDED  IN DEED BOOK 1156, PAGE 36, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. (DOES NOT AFFECTS THE PARCEL)

2.   MUTUAL  RIGHT-OF-WAY  AGREEMENT  DATED  APRIL  1, 1966  AND  RECORDED  APRIL  1, 1966,  IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1354, PAGE 47, AS ASSIGNED  IN

OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2606, PAGE 1023, BOTH OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. (DOES NOT AFFECTS THE PARCEL)

3.   RESERVATION  OF RIGHTS AS CONTAINED  WITHIN  QUIT CLAIM  DEED AND  AGREEMENT  FOR  RESERVATION  OF RIGHTS, DATED JANUARY 30, 2003, RECORDED

FEBRUARY 3, 2003, IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 14742, PAGE 1196, AS AFFECTED BY PARTIAL RELEASE FROM THE SEMINOLE IMPROVEMENT  DISTRICT, RECORDED IN

OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 28084, PAGE 985, BOTH OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. (DOES NOT AFFECTS THE PARCEL)

4. INTERLOCAL  AGREEMENT  BETWEEN PALM BEACH COUNTY AND SEMINOLE  IMPROVEMENT  DISTRICT  RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 20252, PAGE 184, OF

THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA.   (NOT A MATTER OF SURVEY-BLANKET EASEMENT)

5.   TERMS,  PROVISIONS  AND EASEMENTS  CONTAINED  IN THAT CERTAIN  WARRANTY  DEED RECORDED  SEPTEMBER 25, 1956 IN DEED BOOK 1156, PAGE 58, OF THE

PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. (DOES NOT AFFECTS THE PARCEL)

6.   MATTERS SHOWN  ON THE MAP OF M-CANAL  ROAD,  RECORDED  IN ROAD  PLAT BOOK 6, PAGE 136, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA.

(DOES NOT AFFECTS THE PARCEL)

7.  RECORDED  NOTICE  OF  ENVIRONMENTAL   RESOURCE  PERMIT  BY  SOUTH  FLORIDA  WATER  MANAGEMENT DISTRICT,  RECORDED  AUGUST  13,  2015,  IN OFFICIAL

RECORDS  BOOK  27737,  PAGE  15,  OF  THE  PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. (DOES NOT AFFECTS THE PARCEL)

8.  COLLATERAL  ASSIGNMENT OF DECLARANT'S RIGHTS BY AND BETWEEN MINTO PBLH, LLC AND WELLS FARGO BANK, NA., RECORDED JANUARY 25, 2018, IN OFFICIAL

RECORDS BOOK 29611, PAGE 673, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. (DOES NOT AFFECTS THE PARCEL)

9.  SEMINOLE PRATT WHITNEY ROAD RURAL PARKWAY EASEMENT, BY MINTO PBLH, LLC TO SEMINOLE IMPROVEMENT  DISTRICT AND PALM BEACH COUNTY,

RECORDED OCTOBER  30, 2015,  IN OFFICIAL  RECORDS BOOK 27898, PAGE 1321, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. (SHOWN)

10. UTILITY  EASEMENT  BY  SEMINOLE  IMPROVEMENT  DISTRICT  TO  PALM  BEACH  COUNTY  WATER  UTILITIES DEPARTMENT,  RECORDED  JUNE  6, 2016,  IN OFFICIAL

RECORDS  BOOK 28347,  PAGE 411, OF THE  PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. (DOES NOT AFFECTS THE PARCEL)

11. LICENSE FOR SEMINOLE  PRATT WHITNEY  ROAD CROSSINGS  BY PALM BEACH COUNTY,  RECORDED JUNE 29, 2017, IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 29189, PAGE 1445,

OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. (DOES NOT AFFECTS THE PARCEL)

12. UTILITY  AND  ACCESS  EASEMENT  BY  MINTO  PBLH,  LLC  AND  FLORIDA  POWER  &  LIGHT  COMPANY, RECORDED   AUGUST   10,  2017,   IN  OFFICIAL   RECORDS

BOOK  29283,   PAGE   1333,  TOGETHER   WITH AMENDMENT  TO UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT, RECORDED APRIL 30, 2018, IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 29817, PAGE 650,

BOTH OFTHE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. (DOES NOT AFFECTS THE PARCEL)

13. SEMINOLE  PRATT WHITNEY RURAL PARKWAY MAINTENANCE  AGREEMENT,  BY AND BETWEEN MINTO PBLH, LLC  AND  SEMINOLE  IMPROVEMENT  DISTRICT,

RECORDED  MAY  I 0, 2018,  IN OFFICIAL  RECORDS  BOOK 29842, PAGE 25, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. (DOES NOT AFFECTS THE

PARCEL)

DESCRIPTION:

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH, RANGE 40 EAST, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND BEING
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH, RANGE 40 EAST; THENCE S.01°33'05"W. ALONG
THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 1, A DISTANCE OF 250.33 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH  LINE OF THE 80 FOOT M-CANAL
EASEMENT AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 1156, PAGE 58 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA AND AS
SHOWN IN ROAD PLAT BOOK 6, PAGE 136 OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS, AND AS MONUMENTED; THENCE S.88°36'57"W. ALONG SAID
NORTH LINE OF THE 80 FOOT M-CANAL EASEMENT, A DISTANCE OF 3776.52 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
OF SEMINOLE PRATT WHITNEY ROAD AS RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 1544, PAGE 378 AND OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK
1640, PAGE 1626 BOTH OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS; THENCE S.01°42'52"W. ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SEMINOLE
PRATT WHITNEY ROAD, A DISTANCE OF 8257.61 FEET; THENCE S.88°17'08"E., A DISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY
CORNER OF PROPOSED ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SEMINOLE PRATT WHITNEY ROAD; THENCE  S.43°17'08"E., ALONG SAID
PROPOSED ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY, A DISTANCE OF 28.28 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S.88°17'08"E., A
DISTANCE OF 301.55 FEET; THENCE S.75°00'54"E., A DISTANCE OF 52.28 FEET; THENCE S.88°17'08"E., A DISTANCE OF 202.17 FEET;
THENCE N.46°42'52"E., A DISTANCE OF 15.56 FEET; THENCE S.88°17'08"E., A DISTANCE OF 386.66 FEET; THENCE S.75°52'41"E., A
DISTANCE OF 51.20 FEET; THENCE S.88°17'08"E., A DISTANCE OF 191.23 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE
NORTHWESTERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 89°58'29", A DISTANCE OF 62.81 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N.01°44'23"E., A DISTANCE OF 41.17
FEET; THENCE S.88°17'31"E., A DISTANCE OF 107.96 FEET TO A NON-TANGENT INTERSECTION TO A CURVE CONCAVE  EASTERLY
WITH A RADIUS OF 595.00 FEET, AND A RADIAL BEARING OF S.88°17'31"E. AT SAID INTERSECTION; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG
THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 06°25'48", A DISTANCE OF 66.77 FEET TO A POINT OF COMPOUND
CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 8.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE ARC
OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 47°41'38", A DISTANCE OF 6.66 FEET TO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 48.43 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 54°07'50", A DISTANCE OF 45.75 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S.01°42'52"W., A
DISTANCE OF 49.64 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG THE ARC OF SAID  CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 49°26'45", A DISTANCE OF 34.52
FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S.51°09'38"W., A DISTANCE OF 27.73 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE
CONCAVE NORTHERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG THE ARC SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL
ANGLE OF 40°33'15", A DISTANCE OF 28.31 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY;  THENCE N.88°17'08"W., A DISTANCE OF 40.26 FEET TO A
POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG THE ARC
OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 34°07'19", A DISTANCE OF 23.82 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE
N.54°09'49"W., A DISTANCE OF 27.38 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 10.00
FEET; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 34°07'19", A DISTANCE OF 5.96 FEET
TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N.88°17'08"W., A DISTANCE OF 537.10 FEET; THENCE S.46°42'52"W., A DISTANCE OF 15.56 FEET;
THENCE N.88°17'08"W., A DISTANCE OF 276.68 FEET; THENCE N.75°52'41"W., A DISTANCE OF 51.20 FEET; THENCE N.88°17'08"W., A
DISTANCE OF 329.72 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID  PROPOSED ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SEMINOLE PRATT WHITNEY ROAD;
THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID PROPOSED ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES: 1)
N.46°42'52"E., A DISTANCE OF 26.87 FEET; 2) THENCE N.01°42'52"E., A DISTANCE OF 88.00 FEET; 3) THENCE N.88°17'08"W., A DISTANCE
OF 12.00 FEET; 4) THENCE N.43°17'08"W., A DISTANCE OF 26.87 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING: 4.039 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

Agenda Page 34

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Check:

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.C.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Data File:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT VALID WITHOUT THE SIGNATURE AND THE ORIGINAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAISED SEAL OF A FLORIDA LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dwn.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Prepared For:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Field Book:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Last Date of Field Survey:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
No Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION   MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHERN BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
OKEECHOBEE BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROYAL PALM BEACH BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEMINOLE PRATT  WHITNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERSIMMON BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN CENTER PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.R./O.R.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE(s)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PG(s).

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCH LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION-TOWNSHIP-RANGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-43-41

AutoCAD SHX Text
PALM BEACH COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.B.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET 5/8" IRON ROD LB7768

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH AMERICAN DATUM 1983

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD83

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAINLINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAINAGE MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
LICENSED BUSINESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLORIDA PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR & MAPPER NO.    ..................

AutoCAD SHX Text
This certifies that a survey of the hereon described property was made under my supervision and meets the Standards of Practice  set forth by the Florida Board of Professional Surveyors & Mappers in Chapter 5J-17.050, Florida Administrative Code, pursuant to Section 472.027, Florida Statutes.



D

S

S

S

S

D

P.O.B.

ADDITIONAL

10' RIGHT OF WAY

ADDITIONAL

10' RIGHT OF WAY

80' RURAL PARKWAY

EASEMENT

(O.R. 27898, PG 1321)

80' RURAL PARKWAY

EASEMENT

(O.R. 27898, PG 1321)

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

S
E

M
I
N

O
L
E

-
P

R
A

T
T

 
W

H
I
T

N
E

Y
 
R

O
A

D

S
 
0
1
°
4
2
'
5
2
"
 
W

 
(
C

E
N

T
E

R
L
I
N

E
)

(
W

I
D

T
H

 
V

A
R

I
E

S
)

WATERS EDGE DRIVE

UNPLATTED

N:876010.4550

E:882137.2946

N:876039.4563

E:883480.2335

Section:  12  Twn. 43S Rng. 40E
GAR

SWM

Sheet   No.   2   of   2   Sheets

D
W

G
 
N

A
M

E
:
 
W

:
\
W

E
S

T
L

A
K

E
\
W

E
S

T
L

A
K

E
 
-
 
N

A
V

D
8

8
\
S

U
R

V
E

Y
\
W

A
T

E
R

S
 
E

D
G

E
-
C

S
-
E

4
\
W

A
T

E
R

S
 
E

D
G

E
_

C
S

-
E

4
_

B
S

.
D

W
G

 
 
 
 
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

 
B

Y
:
 
S

E
R

G
I
O

 
M

A
C

H
A

D
O

 
 
 
O

N
:
 
8

/
1

4
/
2

0
1

8
 
5

:
2

8
 
P

M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L

A
S

T
 
S

A
V

E
D

 
B

Y
:
 
S

E
R

G
I
O

M
 
 
 
O

N
:
 
8

/
1

/
2

0
1

8
 
5

:
3

3
 
P

M

GeoPoint
Surveying, Inc.

Licensed Business Number LB 7768

4152 W. Blue Heron Blvd.

Riviera Beach, FL 33404
www.geopointsurvey.com
Phone: (561) 444-2720

Suite 105

WESTLAKE

SCALE: 1" =60'

NORTHEAST CORNER

SECTION 6-43-41

FOUND BRASS DISK IN

CONCRETE "P.B.C."

N:884609.6818  E:891407.3638

NAD83 (2007 ADJUSTMENT)

CERTIFIED CORNER

RECORD #107591

3136
1 6

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

NORTHEAST CORNER OF

SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 43 S., RANGE 40 E.

SET 3.5" IRON PIPE "PUBLIC LAND SURVEY

CORNER-TALLAHASSEE MERIDIAN"

BRASS DISK  "10' EAST" SET IN CONCRETE

FOUND 10' EAST ON SECTION LINE

N: 884626.7147

E: 886137.1629

NAD83 (2007 ADJUSTMENT)

CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD #107597

EAST 1/4 CORNER SECTION 1-43-40

BRASS DISK IN CONCRETE "P.B.C."

CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD # 107599

N:881943.9584 (83/07)

E:886064.5056 (83/07)

M-CANAL

NORTHWEST CORNER SECTION 1-43-40

FOUND BRASS DISK IN CONCRETE "P.B.C."

N:884612.3299,  E:880484.6585

NAD83 (2007 ADJUSTMENT)

CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD #107585

2 1

BOUNDARY SURVEY PROPOSED
WATERS EDGE DRIVE

Waters Edge_CS-E4_BS

MINTO COMMUNITIES, LLC
1211

14 13 SOUTHWEST CORNER

SECTION 12-43-40

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

Luis J. Ortiz
LS7006

L E G E N D

07/24/18 ~~~~~~

~~~

~~~~~~

07/23/18

Agenda Page 35

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH SOUTH  QUARTER (1/4)  LINE OF SECTION 12,  TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH,  RANGE 40 EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH SOUTH  QUARTER (1/4)  LINE OF SECTION 12,  TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH,  RANGE 40 EAST PER K.C. MOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERLY CORNER OF  PROPOSED ADDITIONAL R/W OF SEMINOLE-PRATT WHITNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ADDITIONAL R/W OF SEMINOLE-PRATT  WHITNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ADDITIONAL R/W OF SEMINOLE-PRATT  WHITNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIR (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEADWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC HANDHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIR (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIR (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIR (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIR (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Check:

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.C.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Data File:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT VALID WITHOUT THE SIGNATURE AND THE ORIGINAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAISED SEAL OF A FLORIDA LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dwn.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Prepared For:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Field Book:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Last Date of Field Survey:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIS OF BEARING NORTH BOUNDARY  OF SECTION 6,  TOWNSHIP 43 S., RANGE 41 E. S.89°48'53"E., 5270.23'(MEASURED) S.89°48'52"E., 5270.39'(COUNTY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 31,  TOWNSHIP 42 S., RANGE 41 E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGE 40 RANGE 41

AutoCAD SHX Text
2683.74' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°33'05"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 43 S, RANGE 40 E (S 01°33'05" W 250.33')   

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE 80' M-CANAL ROAD EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE 80' M-CANAL ROAD  EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°36'57"W    3776.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-CANAL 250' RIGHT-OF-WAY (D.B. 1156, PG. 58)

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-CANAL ROAD (R.P.B. 6, PG. 136) 80' CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH EASEMENT (D.B. 1156, PG. 58) NOTE: NOT IN USE AS PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH BOUNDARY OF SECTION 1,  TOWNSHIP 43 S., RANGE 40 E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY  LINE OF M-CANAL (D.B. 1156, PG. 58)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST  R/W LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SEMINOLE-PRATT WHITNEY ROAD (O.R.B. 1544. PG. 378) (O.R.B. 1640, PG. 1626)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY  LINE OF M-CANAL (D.B. 1156, PG. 58)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
No Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION   MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHERN BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
OKEECHOBEE BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROYAL PALM BEACH BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEMINOLE PRATT  WHITNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERSIMMON BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN CENTER PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2313.22' (GRID)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N53°01'37"E    

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST  R/W LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10°52'32"E  8759.19' (GRID)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLORIDA PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR & MAPPER NO.    ..................

AutoCAD SHX Text
This certifies that a survey of the hereon described property was made under my supervision and meets the Standards of Practice  set forth by the Florida Board of Professional Surveyors & Mappers in Chapter 5J-17.050, Florida Administrative Code, pursuant to Section 472.027, Florida Statutes.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.R./O.R.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE(s)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PG(s).

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCH LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION-TOWNSHIP-RANGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-43-41

AutoCAD SHX Text
PALM BEACH COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.B.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET 5/8" IRON ROD LB7768

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH AMERICAN DATUM 1983

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD83

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAINLINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAINAGE MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
LICENSED BUSINESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LB



   

 

1. DATE:        8/22/2018 

2. PETITION NUMBER:     ENG‐2018‐13 

3. DESCRIPTION:      Waters Edge ROW Plat 

APPLICANT:       Minto PBLH, LLC 

OWNER:      Minto PBLH, LLC 

REQUEST:  Plat & Boundary Survey Review 

LOCATION:      Westlake, Florida 

4. STAFF REVIEW:      APPROVAL LETTER  

  This is the second review of this Plat and Boundary Survey. This review is done for compliance with 
  Chapter 177 Florida Statutes, and the City of Westlake’s codes and ordinances. Following are our 
  comments: 

  Boundary Survey Comments: 

  All of our previous comments have been adequately addressed. 

  Plat Comments: 

 All of our previous comments have been adequately addressed. The plat is now in compliance with 
  Chapter 177 Florida Statutes. 

 

This letter has been prepared by the following individual, in association with their consultants and 
subconsultants: 

 

Suzanne Dombrowski, P.E. 
Chen Moore and Associates 
Tel: 561.746.6900 x 1035 
Email: sdombrowski@chenmoore.com 

CITY OF WESTLAKE 
Engineering Department 

4001 Seminole Pratt Whitney Road 
Westlake, Florida 33470 
Phone: (561) 530-5880 
www.westlakegov.com 

Agenda Page 36


	WATERS EDGE_PLAT.PDF
	Sheets and Views
	COVER

	P2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PLAT


	p1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	COVER



	WATERS EDGE_BOUNDARY SURVEY.PDF
	Sheets and Views
	Waters Edge-CS_E4_BS_Cover

	Waters Edge_CS-E4_BS2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Waters Edge-CS_E4_BS






